Public Document Pack

Agenda Reports & Other Papers
Presented to the
Meeting of the
Development Control Committee
on
Wednesday, 27 March 2019

1.

Agenda

1 - 78

Agenda

AGENDA for a meeting of the DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE in the
COUNCIL CHAMBER, County Hall, Hertford on WEDNESDAY 27 MARCH 2019 at
10:00AM
MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE (10) (Quorum = 3)
D Andrews, D J Barnard, S J Boulton, D S Drury, E M Gordon, J S Hale, M D M Muir
(Vice-Chairman), S Quilty, I M Reay (Chairman), A D Williams
AGENDA
AUDIO SYSTEM
The Council Chamber is fitted with an audio system to assist those with hearing
impairment. Anyone who wishes to use this should contact the main (front) reception.
PART I (PUBLIC) AGENDA
Meetings of the Committee are open to the public (this includes the press) and
attendance is welcomed. However, there may be occasions when the public are
excluded from the meeting - for particular items of business. Any such items are taken
at the end of the public part of the meeting and are listed below under “Part II (‘closed’)
agenda”.
Members are reminded that:
(1)

if they consider that they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to
be considered at the meeting they must declare that interest and must not
participate in or vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been granted by
the Standards Committee;

(2)

if they consider that they have a Declarable Interest (as defined in paragraph 5.3
of the Code of Conduct for Members) in any matter to be considered at the
meeting they must declare the existence and nature of that interest. If a member
has a Declarable Interest they should consider whether they should participate
in consideration and vote on the matter.

MINUTES
To confirm the minutes of the meeting of the Development Control Committee held on
27 February 2019 (attached).

Agenda Pack Page 1

1

PUBLIC PETITIONS
The opportunity for any member of the public, being resident in or a registered local
government elector of Hertfordshire to present a petition relating to a matter with
which the Council is concerned, and is relevant to the remit of this Committee,
containing 100 or more signatures of residents or business ratepayers of
Hertfordshire.
Notification of intent to present a petition must have been given to the Chief Legal
Officer at least 20 clear days before the meeting where an item relating to the subject
matter of the petition does not appear in the agenda, or at least 5 clear days where
the item is the subject of a report already on the agenda.
[Members of the public who are considering raising an issue of concern via a petition
are advised to contact their local member of the Council. The Council's arrangements
for the receipt of petitions are set out in Annex 22 - Petitions Scheme of the
Constitution.]
If you have any queries about the procedure please contact Elaine Manzi on telephone
no. (01992) 588062
MOTIONS (Standing Order C9)
Motions may be made on a matter relevant to the Committee’s terms of reference (other
than motions relating to a matter on the agenda, which shall be moved when that matter is
discussed).
Motions must have been notified in writing to the Chief Legal Officer by 9 am on the day
before the meeting and will be dealt with in order of receipt.
No motions had been submitted at the time of agenda dispatch.
1.

APPLICATION FOR THE PROPOSED NEW ACCESS AND BRIDGE
BETWEEN THE A1170 DINANT ROUNDABOUT AND ESSEX ROAD INTO
THE HODDESDON BUSINESS PARK AT ESSEX ROAD, HODDESDON,
HERTFORDSHIRE, EN11 0QX.
Report of the Director of Environment & Infrastructure
Local Member: Tim Hutchings
Adjoining Member: Paul Mason

2.

APPLICATION FOR THE VARIATION OF CONDITION 15 (HOURS OF
OPERATION) OF PLANNING PERMISSION 3/2245-17 TO ALLOW THE
LOW PROFILE TREATMENT PLANT AND ANCILLARY ACTIVITIES TO BE
OPERATIONAL DURING SATURDAY MORNINGS TO PROCESS THE
EXCAVATED MATERIAL FOR THE REMAINING CONSTRUCTION PERIOD
AT THORLEY HALL FARM, THORLEY WASH, THORLEY, BISHOPS
STORTFORD, HERTFORDSHIRE, CM23 4AT.

Agenda Pack Page 2

2

Report of the Director of Environment & Infrastructure
Local Member: Graham McAndrew
Adjoining Member: Eric Buckmaster

OTHER PART I BUSINESS
Such other Part I (public) business which, the Chairman agrees, is of sufficient urgency to
warrant consideration.
PART II (‘CLOSED’) AGENDA
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
There are no items of Part II business on this agenda but if an item is notified the
Chairman will move:"That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and
public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph **
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the said Act and the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.”
If you require a copy of any of the reports mentioned above or require further information
about this agenda please contact Elaine Manzi, Democratic Services Officer on telephone
no. 01992 588062 or email: elaine.manzi@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Agenda documents are also available on the internet
KATHRYN PETTITT
CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER

Agenda Pack Page 3

3

This page is intentionally left blank

Minutes

To: All Members of the
Development Control
Committee, Chief Officers, All
officers named for ‘actions’

From:
Legal, Democratic & Statutory Services
Ask for: Elaine Manzi
Ext:
28062

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY 27 FEBRUARY 2019
ATTENDANCE
MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE
D Andrews; D Barnard; S J Boulton, D S Drury, E M Gordon, J S Hale, M D M Muir (ViceChairman), I M Reay (Chairman),
Upon consideration of the agenda for the Development Control Committee meeting on
27 February 2019 as circulated, copy annexed, conclusions were reached and are
recorded below:
CHAIRMAN’S ANNOUNCEMENTS
(i)

Members of the public were welcomed to the meeting and advised of safety
procedures in the event of an emergency.

(ii)

If a Member wished their particular view on an item of business to be recorded in
the Minutes, it would be recorded on request by that Member.

(iii)

Members were reminded of their obligation to declare interests at the start of the
meeting.

PART I (‘OPEN’) BUSINESS
ACTION
MINUTES
The minutes of the Committee meeting held on 20 December
2018 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by the
Chairman.
PUBLIC PETITIONS
None

Agenda Pack Page 5

4

1.

APPLICATION FOR THE CHANGE OF USE FROM B1/B2
CLASS TO SUI GENERIS USE CLASS, METAL WASTE
RECYCLING FACILITY OF CATALYTIC CONVERTERS, CAR
BATTERIES AND COPPER WIRE AT BLANCOMET
RECYCLING UK, UNIT Y, LYON WAY, ST ALBANS, AL4 0LB.
Officer Contact: Sharon Threlfall- Senior Planning Officer (Tel:
01992 555062)

1.1

Members considered retrospective planning application reference
5/2631-18 for the change of use from B1/B2 Class to ‘sui generis’
use class, metal waste recycling facility of catalytic converters, car
batteries and copper wire at Blancomet Recycling UK, Unit Y,
Lyon Way, St Albans, AL4 0LB.

1.2

During discussion, Members agreed that they had observed on
their visit that the site had presented as being very well run, tidy
and orderly. It was noted that the increase in facilities to recycle
replaceable vehicle accessories, such as batteries, should be
encouraged.

1.3

Members noted the objection raised by Colney Heath Parish
Council on the basis of the encroachment onto the industrial
estate from the site boundaries of discarded building materials.
Assurance was received that investigation had established that
this had not been caused by the applicant.

1.4

Further to a request from the Vice Chairman, M D M Muir and
other members of the committee, it was agreed that officers would
follow up on the initial contact made St Albans City & District
Council to arrange for an enforcement notice to be issued with the
view to the rubbish being removed.

1.5

Members considered the objection made by St Albans City and
District Council on the grounds that the application would result in
a loss of B1/B2/B8 employment land. The application would
increase the number of jobs from 12 to 16, albeit in the ‘sui
generis’ use class. Members noted that there was little significant
difference in the nature of jobs within the ‘sui generis’ use class as
compared to B1/B2/B8 use classes, and that the local policy
deemed that sui generis uses could be acceptable on designated
employment land, provided that there was no adverse
environmental impact.

1.6

It was noted that the objection had been based on the city and
district council’s current Local Plan Policy. A Member comment
that a new city and district council local plan was in draft format
was noted.

Sharon
Threlfall

5
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 6

1.7

In response to a Member question, assurance was received that
although not mentioned in the report, no negative impact on traffic
had been identified.

1.8

RESOLUTION:
Members agreed that the Director of Environment & Infrastructure
be authorised to grant planning permission subject to the schedule
of six conditions as follows:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Approved plans
Storage of catalytic convertors and car batteries
Hours of operation
Noise
Vehicle movements
Vehicle log

KATHRYN PETTITT
CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER

CHAIRMAN

6
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY 27 MARCH 2019 AT 10:00AM

Agenda No.

1

BROXBOURNE BOROUGH COUNCIL
APPLICATION FOR THE PROPOSED NEW ACCESS AND BRIDGE
BETWEEN THE A1170 DINANT ROUNDABOUT AND ESSEX ROAD INTO
THE HODDESDON BUSINESS PARK AT ESSEX ROAD, HODDESDON,
HERTFORDSHIRE, EN11 0QX.
Report of the Director of Environment & Infrastructure
Author:

Sharon Threlfall, Senior Planning Officer
[Tel: 01992 555062]

Local Member:
Tim Hutchings
Adjoining Member: Paul Mason
1
1.1

2

Purpose of Report
To consider planning application reference number 7/0135-19 for a
proposed new access and bridge between the A1170 Dinant
Roundabout and Essex Road into the Hoddesdon Business Park at
Essex Road, Hoddesdon, Hertfordshire, EN11 0QX.
Summary

2.1 The council is seeking to provide a new access road and bridge between
the A1170 Dinant Roundabout and Hoddesdon Business Park. The
proposed development would include a new connecting carriageway
with provision for motor vehicles, cyclists and pedestrians including a
new road bridge over the New River and a footbridge over Woollens
Brook.
2.2 The existing access arrangement into Hoddesdon Business Park is
currently restricted with only one main route in and out of the site. The
route has inadequate capacity for the current volume of movements,
restricting the economic growth of the business park, and its narrow
width limits the safe passage of cyclists and pedestrians in particular.
2.3 The need to improve this access has been long established between
Hertfordshire County Council and the Borough of Broxbourne, following
a study in 2006.This was further supported by the 2009 Hertfordshire
Infrastructure and Investment Strategy. The principal of the project is
supported at a Local Plan level, and is identified as a highway
improvement scheme with secured funding in the Local Transport Plan 4
(2018 – 2031).

Agenda Pack Page 9

7

2.4 This application seeks planning permission for an offline option to deliver
the necessary highway upgrade, with a new arm to the A1170
roundabout created to take traffic at height over the Woollens Brook and
the New River to tie into Essex Road approximately 50 metre to the east
of the existing bridge crossing.
2.5 The key elements of this offline option are: New 270m long access road between the A1170 roundabout with
Essex Road and the Geddings Road junction with Essex Road;
 20m single span reinforced concrete bridge over the New River;
 Road cross-section to be 6.75m wide carriageway (1no 2m
footway, 1no. 3m shared footway, parapets and highway boundary
fencing as required);
 New toucan crossing on both the eastern and western end of the
new access road;
 5no. 5 m wide span box culverts to provide for flood
compensation/storage, and
 New footbridge over Woollens Brook with a clear span of 8m.
2.6 The application site stretches from the A1170 roundabout in the west,
which is located to the north east of Hoddesdon town centre, to a point
approximately 270 metres along Essex Road to the junction with
Geddings Road. The application site is 2.9 hectares in area taking in
wooded green land and pass over the New River waterway. The pump
station is excluded from the application, but sits wholly within the site.
2.7 Essex Road provides the only access point into the Hoddesdon
Business Park from the west. It is a minor road, and is single
carriageway, and the existing road bridge over the New River is not wide
enough for two vehicles to safely pass over at the same time.
2.8 The pavement is not continuous along both sides of Essex Road within
the application area, meaning that pedestrians must cross a busy road,
frequented by HGVs. Users of the Hoddesdon 015 footpath from the
west and the Hoddesdon 054 footpath from the south must cross Essex
Road by the existing road bridge to continue alongside the New River on
PRoW Hoddesdon 053. There is very limited space for pedestrians to
wait when approaching Essex Road from the south and have a clear
view of the on-coming traffic.
2.9

The General Arrangement plan is included at Annex 1.

2.10 The main planning issues of the application can be summarised as:
 Need and justification;
 Impact on highways and transport;
 Landscape and visual impact;
 Quality of design;
 Impact on ecology and biodiversity;
 Flood risk, and
 Impact on residential amenity (noise, dust, light)

Agenda Pack Page 10

8

2.11 The report concludes that the Director of Environment & Infrastructure
should be authorised to grant planning permission subject to the
following TWENTY-ONE conditions: 1. Time limit for commencement
2. Approved plans and documents
3. Materials used in Construction
4. Landscaping Plan
5. Landscape and Ecological Management Plan
6. Design and Structural Details
7. Stage 1 Road Safety Audit
8. Additional plans and details
9. Traffic Regulation Order
10. Rights of Way
11. Construction Traffic Management Plan
12. Mud on the road
13. Drainage Strategy (1)
14. Drainage Strategy (2)
15. Drainage Network Maintenance Plan
16. Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation (1)
17. Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation (2)
18. Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation (3)
19. Lighting
20. Badgers
21. Fencing/Boundary Treatment

Agenda Pack Page 11

9

3

Description of the site

3.1 The application site stretches from the A1170 roundabout in the west,
which is located to the north east of Hoddesdon town centre, to a point
approximately 270 metres along Essex Road to the junction with
Geddings Road. The application site is 2.9 hectares in area taking in
wooded green land and passing over the New River waterway. The
pump station is excluded from the application, but sits wholly within the
site.
3.2 Essex Road is a classified unnumbered road; it has the unofficial name
C137 and is currently designated as a Secondary Distributor in the
council’s road hierarchy. It forms the only access point from the west into
the Hoddesdon Business Park. There is footway of around 1.3 metres in
width on the northern side of Essex Road, below the recommended
minimum width of 2 metres. There is no segregated facility for cyclists.
3.3 At present, the application area falls outside of the designated
Hoddesdon Business Plan Improvement Plan (September 2013),
although the draft Local Plan seeks to extend the Woollens Brook
campus to incorporate this land. The application area falls wholly within
the Essex Road ‘Gateway’ Area identified by Broxbourne Borough
Council in their 2011 development brief.
3.4 The area to the north of Dinant Link Road is residential, and screened
from the public highway by mature trees and planting. There is a
footpath linking the housing to Essex Road, which leads onto the
pedestrian access underneath the dualled section of the A1170 towards
Hoddesdon town centre. Planning permission has been granted for an
infill residential development on a former industrial unit, to be accessed
from Essex Road, approximately 25 metres to the north-west of the
existing bridge.
3.5 The area immediately to the east of the roundabout is formed of
scrubland and floodplain. There is a public footpath (Hoddesdon 015)
through the southern section of the scrubland which runs alongside the
allotments and joins up with the footway beside the New River.
3.6 The Hoddesdon 053 footpath runs along the New River towpath in a
northerly direction to Rye Road. Hoddesdon footpath 054 runs in a
southerly direction to Lampits. Both are accessible from Essex Road via
metal kissing gates. Hoddesdon footpath 015, also accessible from a
kissing gate, links Essex Road to Charlton Way. The surface of these
routes varies in width and quality.
3.7 The land to the south of the application area, and beyond the allotments,
is residential. The area to the east of the New River and the application
boundary forms the Woollens Brook campus of the Hoddesdon Business
Park, and is characterised by warehousing, distribution and general
industry units. The Borough Council Improvement Plan states that most

Agenda Pack Page 12

10

of the buildings are in good condition.
3.8 The majority of the application site is in Flood Zone 2; the application
area largely forms Land Parcel 3 in the Essex Road Gateway
Development Brief prepared by Broxbourne Borough Council, and is
identified as floodplain. The land immediately adjacent to the brook, and
the land between Parrots Field and Essex Road are in Flood Zone 3
(highest risk of flooding).
3.9 The application area passes from Groundwater Source Protection Zone
1 (Inner Protection Zone, and the highest level of vulnerability).
3.10 The pump station immediately to the south of the existing road bridge
does not form part of the planning application area. This is identified as a
‘Heritage Asset’ by the County Council’s Historic Environment Record,
but does not benefit from a formal listing.
3.11 There have been no previous applications in respect of highway
improvements to the County Council in respect of this junction.
4

Description of the proposed development

4.1 The primary element of the proposed development is the new access
road and bridge between the A1170 Dinant roundabout and Hoddesdon
Business Park. The proposed development includes a new connecting
carriageway with appropriate provision for motor vehicles, cyclists and
pedestrians including a new road bridge over the New River and a
footbridge over Woollens Brook.
4.2 The proposed development comprises of: New 270m long access road between the A1170 roundabout with
Essex Road and the Geddings Road junction with Essex Road;
 20m single span reinforced concrete bridge over the New River;
 Road cross-section to be 6.75m wide carriageway (1no. 2m
footway, 1no. 3m shared footway, parapets and highway boundary
fencing as required);
 New toucan crossing on both the eastern and western end of the
new access road;
 5no. 5 m wide span box culverts to provide for flood
compensation/storage, and
 New footbridge over Woollens Brook with a clear span of 8m.
4.3 The existing eastbound carriageway, Dinant Link Road, will be reduced
in width from a three lane to a two lane entry onto the roundabout.
4.4

It is proposed to retain Essex Road as a section of the public highway,
however the existing entrance to Essex Road would be narrowed and
there would be no through access beyond the existing entrance to the
Oaklands Yard, and there is a separate (district) planning permission to
build houses on this land. The existing access to the pump station would
also be retained.

Agenda Pack Page 13

11

5

Consultations

5.1 A total of 696 properties were consulted in respect of the application. A
press notice was placed in the Hertfordshire Mercury, and site notices
were erected on 29 November 2018.
5.2 Broxbourne Borough Council is supportive of the application provided
that: Substantive progress is made on the design and implementation of
measures to reduce traffic congestion along the Essex Road
Corridor;
 The scheme creates an attractive gateway into Hoddesdon
Business Park and an environmental legacy for Hoddesdon.
Appropriate conditions should be included on any planning
permission to ensure this outcome; and
 That this Council [Broxbourne] continues to be involved in the
detailed design and implementation of the scheme
A full copy of the consultation response is provided at Annex 3.
5.3 County Councillor Tim Hutchings has requested that the application is
determined by the Development Control Committee.
5.4 The Canal & River Trust had no comment to make, as the development
falls outside of its notified areas on which it is a statutory consultee.
5.5 Cadent advises of the presence of Low or Medium pressure (below 2
bar) gas pipes and associated equipment, and sets out the requirements
that must be undertaken to ensure safe working, which can be included
as an informative on any subsequent planning permission.
5.6 The Environment Agency originally objected to the proposed
development on the basis that the proposed structures (culvert, bridge &
footbridge) over the Woollens Brook and New River constrain the
riparian corridors of these watercourses, which would adversely affect
the flora and fauna dependent on the environment.
The applicant engaged directly with the Environment Agency to
incorporate amendments to address the objections. The culvert section
proposes to include a mammal ledge, and the footbridge section is set
back one metre from the top of Woollens Brook. On that basis, and with
the provision of Water Directive Framework reports, the Environment
Agency has removed their objection subject to a pre-commencement
condition requiring the provision of a compensatory habitat creation
scheme, and landscape and ecology management plans.
5.7 The Environmental Health team at Broxbourne Borough Council
originally commented that the application required a review of the
submitted Noise Report and the provision of an Air Quality Assessment.
These requirements were removed, following clarification that the
proposed development would move traffic further south from a permitted

Agenda Pack Page 14

12

(but unbuilt) residential development at ‘Oaklands’, and is not located
within an AQMA (Air Quality Management Area).
5.8 Hertfordshire Ecology finds that the impacts are collectively considerable
at both a site and local level, that the proposed biodiversity
enhancements are relatively minor and that the proposed development
will result in a net loss of biodiversity, contrary to the aims of the National
Planning Policy Framework. Offsite conversation works are
recommended; equivalent to creating and managing new habitat of
grassland, scrub and woodland within an area of at least 0.5 hectares.
5.9 The Highway Authority is satisfied that the proposed development will
not have a ‘severe’ impact on the highway (cf. paragraph 109 of the
NPPF), and indeed considers that there will be significant benefits to the
free and safe flow of all highway and right of way users. Furthermore,
the scheme encourages the use of more sustainable modes of travel in
line with national, county and local transport policies. The development
is acceptable in a highways context subject to seven planning conditions
including, but not limited to, details of structural design, a safety audit,
Construction Traffic Management Plan, and measures to prevent the
deposit of mud on the road. The full response is set out at Annex 4.
5.10 The Hoddesdon Society makes no specific planning comments on the
proposed development itself, but seeks an assurance that there will be
no major projects at the Hoddesdon Business Park until the bridge is
constructed.
5.11 Highways England offers no objection.
5.12 Historic England does not wish to offer any comments on the planning
application.
5.13 The Landscape Officer finds that, subject to additional mitigation
measures set out at Annex 4, the landscaping and visual impact is
acceptable; these can be secured through condition. It is acknowledged
that there will be large adverse effects, on a temporary basis, during the
construction phase.
5.14 The Lead Local Flood Authority recommends three conditions to be
attached to any planning permission in order to reduce the risk of
flooding and to ensure the appropriate storage and disposal of surface
water.
5.15 MAG London Stansted Airport has no aerodrome safeguarding
objections.
5.16 NATS (En Route) Public Limited Company (“NERL”) has no
safeguarding objection to the proposal.
5.17 Natural England refers to its Standing Advice as the proposed
development is within two kilometres of the Rye Meads SSSI.

Agenda Pack Page 15

13

5.18 The Natural, Historic & Built Environment Team recommends three
conditions be attached to any planning permission in order to protect any
archaeological assets, given the rich archaeological and historic
landscape heritage of the Borough of Broxbourne.
5.19 Nazeing Parish Council has no comment on the application.
5.20 No other statutory consultation responses were received.
Public consultation
5.21 A total of 27 responses were received from members of the public in
respect of the proposed development.
5.22 The responses were largely in support of, and recognised the need for a
replacement bridge. However, there was an overriding concern that the
no other major development projects in the local area, either at the
business park and specifically the proposed Energy from Waste facility
at Rattys Lane, should be permitted or constructed prior to the
completion of the replacement bridge.
5.23 Several respondents acknowledged the need to replace the existing
bridge on the basis of safety concerns due to the age and width of the
bridge, but made the following comments: The replacement bridge should not be used to justify the Energy
from Waste facility at Ratty’s Lane;
 No other major projects should be built or approved until the
replacement bridge has been completed;
 Support but concern that design of approach will add to congestion,
with a reduction of the number of lanes, and
 Additional measures are needed to ensure that HGVs do not use
the local residential roads.
5.24 Objections to the proposal were made on the following basis: That there will be an increase in HGV movements;
 The increase in vehicles will in turn increase pollution and
associated health risks, and
 The construction process would cause unacceptable delay and
congestion on the surrounding road network.
6

The Development Plan

6.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
requires proposals to be determined in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
For the purposes of the Act, the development plan comprises of the
Broxbourne Local Plan Second Review 2001 – 2011 (adopted 2005),
and the saved policies within it. Additional policy guidance is provided in
the Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) (2013 update).

Agenda Pack Page 16

14

6.2 Following an Examination in Public, the Inspector found that the
proposed Core Strategy was inadequate in 2011. Therefore, the policy
document was not adopted. The emerging Broxbourne Local Plan 2018
– 2033 has been the subject of an Examination in Public which
concluded in November 2018. Some weight can be given to the draft
policies contained within it.
6.3 Further planning guidance is provided in the Hoddesdon Business Park
Improvement Plan (September 2013) and the Essex Road Gateway
development brief (April 2011).
6.4 The most relevant planning policies to consider for this application are:
The Broxbourne Local Plan Second Review 2001 – 2011
Policy SUS1 Sustainable Development Principals
Policy SUS5 Pollution
Policy SUS6 Air Quality
Policy SUS8 Noisy Development
Policy SUS9 Requirement for a Noise Impact Study
Policy SUS11 Light Pollution and Floodlighting
Policy SUS15 Ground and Surface Water Pollution
Policy SUS16 Flood Risk Assessments
Policy SUS17 Flood Prevention
Policy GBC17 Protection and Enhancement of Public Rights of Way
Policy GBC19 Protection for Sites of Wildlife and Nature Interest
Policy GBC20 Protected Species
Policy HD13 Design Principles
Policy HD14 Design Statement on Local Character
Policy HD19 Waterside Green Chains
Policy T3
Transport and New Development
Policy T5
Development Standards
Policy T9
Pedestrian Needs
Policy T10
Cycling Provision
6.5 The key relevant draft Local Plan policies are:Policy HOD3 Hoddesdon Business Park
Policy INF1
Infrastructure
Policy INF2
Broxbourne Transport Policy
Policy INF3
Road Infrastructure
Policy ED2
Employment Areas
6.6 Hertfordshire County Council Local Transport Plan (2018 – 2031) sets
out the County Council’s vision and strategy for the long term
development of transport within the county, alongside local guidance in
The Hoddesdon and Broxbourne Urban Transport Plan (March 2012).
6.7 These policies are considered alongside national guidance in the form of
The National Planning Policy Framework.

Agenda Pack Page 17

15

7

Planning Issues

7.1 The principal planning issues to be taken into account in determining this
application can be summarised as:
 Need and justification;
 Impact on highways and transport;
 Landscape and visual impact;
 Quality of design;
 Impact on ecology and biodiversity;
 Flood risk, and
 Impact on residential amenity (noise, dust, light)
Need and justification
7.2 Hoddesdon Business Park falls within the M11/A10 Growth Area, as
identified by the Hertfordshire Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP). Within
these Growth Areas, the LEP has four key priorities, including to provide
the foundations for growth, as stated in the Strategic Economic Plan
(SEP) 2017 - 2030. The SEP acknowledged that, in general, the road
network in Hertfordshire is extremely congested.
7.3 The need to improve this key access point into Hoddesdon Business
Park has been long established between Hertfordshire County Council
and Broxbourne Borough Council, following a study in 2006. This was
further supported by the 2009 Hertfordshire Infrastructure and
Investment Strategy. This need has been reflected in subsequent plan
documents at a local, county and strategic level, and is identified as a
highway improvement scheme with secured funding in the Local
Transport Plan 4 (2018 – 2031).
7.4 It is considered that the proposed improvements to Essex Road would
meet the key objectives of the 2011 Government Transport White Paper,
which provides key objectives for future transport investment, namely:
 to create growth in the economy and to tackle climate change by
cutting carbon emissions; and,
 to tackle places where congestion causes slow and unreliable
journeys with significant impacts on the economy and environment;
7.5 The borough council has placed great importance on reinvigorating and
updating Hoddesdon Business Park, which is a key employment
provider within the local catchment. As of 2013, there were
approximately 200 businesses which represented 5,500 employees.
Although the vacancy rate is less than 5%, the existing tenants identified
the challenges created by the congestion during the 2016 Essex Road
Gateway Study. A reliable transport network is an essential component
to the economic viability and growth of the local businesses.
7.6 The Local Transport Plan 4 identifies that economic growth is a national
priority, and is that transport has a key role in facilitating economic
growth (cf. page 5 of LTP4). Essex Road is identified as requiring bridge

Agenda Pack Page 18

16

and highway improvements to enhance multimodal access to a large
employment area.
7.7 The existing carriageway falls below current design standards, and due
to the high level of Heavy Good Vehicle (HGV) traffic accessing and
egressing the business park, HGVs regularly have to give way to oncoming traffic to avoid a collision over the bridge. The bridge itself is
more than sixty years old, and its narrow width (6.1 metres) means that
vehicles have mounted the footway in order to pass. This compromises
the safety of pedestrians, and does not allow a separation from vehicles
and other non-motorised forms of transport
7.8 Objections have been raised in that the proposed development should
not be used as a justification for the grant of planning permission for the
Energy from Waste Facility proposed at Ratty’s Lane. This application is
currently awaiting final determination by the Secretary of State, following
a public inquiry.
7.9 Residents have also sought assurance that there would be no major
construction projects within Hoddesdon Business Park prior to the
completion of the proposed development. Any future planning
applications would be subject to a separate planning process, and would
be determined on their own merits in light of the relevant highway
setting.
7.10 The proposed development is therefore compliant with a long term aim
of both the borough and county councils, to improve the safety and
relieve congestion associated with access into Hoddesdon Business
Park, which is compromised with an existing narrow bridge. The new
access will increase the resilience of the transport access to the
business park to cope with incidents such as collisions, breakdowns and
maintenance. The proposal is therefore compliant with Local Plan Policy
T3, and draft Local Plan Policy INF3 which can be given some weight.
The scheme is identified in the Transport Proposals Map of the newly
adopted Local Transport Plan 4.
Impact on highways and transport
7.11 The proposal seeks to relieve congestion generated by the narrow
access over the New River. The inadequate road width means that
HGVs regularly have to wait in order to allow vehicles to pass on a oneway basis. This in turn contributes to queuing and congestion on the
wider road network.
7.12 At present, the narrow carriageway results in frequent footway incursions
by vehicles, putting pedestrians, and cyclists, at risk of injury due to the
lack of separation. This is exacerbated by the path crossing the bridge at
grade (i.e. the footway is not raised and clearly delineated from the
road). The vertical alignment over the bridge is also lower than current
standards, which increases the risk of collision between vehicles due to
poor sight lines. The bridge is also in need of increasing levels of

Agenda Pack Page 19

17

maintenance due to its age.
7.13 The Essex Road Gateway Development Brief, prepared by Broxbourne
Borough Council envisages the widening of the existing road and the
construction of a separate structure for use by pedestrians and cyclists,
to the south of the existing carriageway. The emerging Local Plan seeks
to deliver this Development Brief on adoption. This online option was
considered by the applicant, but was discounted on the basis of the
large scale disruption that would be caused by the closure of the
eastbound access point for HGVs into the business park. The long term
closure of this access to park would compromise the economic viability
of the businesses, contrary to other Local Plan policies.
7.14 The offline option allows for much of the construction work to carried out
while the existing access to the business park is retained, with some
night time closures to allow for carriageway tie in works. This is reflected
in the Draft Broxbourne Transport Strategy, which was subject to public
consultation by the borough council in September 2017.
7.15 These highlighted issues contribute to congestion in and around the
A1170/Essex Road roundabout, and compromise the reliability of
journey times. The capacity modelling forecast a slight increase in the
queue length along Dinant Link Road (maximum of three passenger car
lengths in the morning peak hour), which is reflective of reduction from
three to two lanes on the roundabout entry from the west (A10). Queues
on the existing Essex Road arm approach would be virtually eliminated,
and a typical maximum queue of just one passenger car length (pcu) on
the new Essex Road arm approach. This is significantly better than the
current queueing along Essex Road on approach to the roundabout, and
it is found by way of a Transport Assessment that the scheme will have
an overall capacity benefit.
7.16 The Highway Authority have highlighted concerns with regards to the
potential for collisions on the eastbound Dinant Link Road, with the
reduction of the number of lanes from three to two, and neighbours have
raised concerns that this will increase congestion in the local area. The
applicant has advised that the number of lanes has been reduced due to
insufficient space for three moderate sized vehicles to use the
roundabout at the same time. Highways have recommended that prior to
the commencement of the development, an additional Stage 1 Road
Safety Audit is carried out, over an extended assessment area to
incorporate the lane drop and the potential for late merging manoeuvres.
Any congestion resultant from the reduction in the number of lanes has
to be balanced against the safety of the local road network and the
improved reliability of the access to the business park.
7.17 The Highway Authority is satisfied that the proposed development will
not have a ‘severe’ impact on the highway (cf. paragraph 109 of the
NPPF), and considers that there will be significant benefits to the free
and safe flow of all highway and right of way users, with the provision of
a more resilient local transport network.

Agenda Pack Page 20

18

7.18 Furthermore, the scheme encourages the use of more sustainable
modes of travel in line with national, county and local transport policies.
Pedestrians and cyclists will benefit from a safer, segregated journey,
with the provision of a dedicated shared path along both sides of the
new bridge, which is compliant with current design standards. A toucan
crossing is proposed at new arm of the roundabout, with a further toucan
crossing to the west of the existing road bridge. These allow for the safe
crossing of pedestrians and cyclists, and will allow provide access to the
residential area to the north of the development without the need to
traverse the roundabout, prioritising non-motorised transport in
compliance with Local Plan Policies T9 and T10.
7.19 A separate footbridge is proposed from the eastern bank of the New
River, opposite the existing allotments, linking into the toucan crossing at
the entrance to the business park. This ensures a safe and continual
right of way for pedestrians on both sides of the river.
7.20 The temporary loss of public footpath Hoddesdon footpath 015 is
considered reasonable, given the relatively short term nature of the
construction period and that the final scheme will deliver a clear and
defined route, which will be more accessible for pedestrians, thereby
enhancing the Waterside Green Chain, in compliance with Local Plan
Policy HD19.
7.21 These elements of the proposed development reflect the guidance of the
NPPF to promote accessibility for pedestrian and cyclists (cf. paragraph
106 of the NPPF) and minimise the scope for conflict between
pedestrians, cyclists and motorised vehicles (cf. paragraph 110 of the
NPPF). In turn, this policy stance is filtered into local plan documents,
and is incorporated in Policies 7 (Active Travel – Walking), 8 (Active
Travel - Cycling) and 17 (Road Safety) of the Local Transport Plan 4.
7.22 A Traffic Management Plan can be secured through condition to
minimise driver stress and frustration during the construction period.
This would ensure the appropriate and timely sharing of information
regarding works that may impact journey routes or times.
7.23 No rail routes would be impacted by the proposed development.
Landscape and visual impact
7.24 It is unavoidable that the introduction of a permanent and large scale
elevated road bridge will fundamentally change the character of a highly
sensitive area of undeveloped and naturally vegetated land. It is further
acknowledged that the borough council has set out at a local plan level,
the intention to use at least part of the application area to develop a
‘gateway’ to Hoddesdon Business Park.

Agenda Pack Page 21

19

7.25 The Essex Road Gateway Development Brief (April 2011) identifies five
parcels of land, of which four fall into the application area. The key land
parcel is Land parcel 2 – Dinant roundabout development site, which is
the 0.77 hectare of scrubland between Lampits and Woollen Brook,
abutting the roundabout. The borough council envisaged the land would
be developed as a landmark B1 office scheme facing the roundabout
and link road (cf. page 8 of the Development Brief).
7.26 The Landscape Officer has raised concerns in respect of the scheme as
submitted, and identifies that there are major adverse residual
landscape and visual effects. However, seven measures have been
identified that can seek to mitigate the impact of the proposed
development. These are set out in full at Annex 4, but include the
replacement of trees removed from the area of the temporary
compound, a more naturalistic design of the attenuation ponds and the
design and materials of the footpaths which should be informal and rural
in character.
7.27 Furthermore, the significance of the proposed fencelines in proximity to
the notable retained Oak tree1, and the treatment of trees and
hedgerows is highlighted with further recommended mitigation. The
applicant has advised that they would be willing to incorporate the
recommendations of the Landscape Officer, and this can be secured
through condition, and thereby provide a more sympathetic setting for
the Pump House; this is not part of the application area but sits within it,
and while not listed, it is a ‘heritage asset’2. By incorporating these
recommendations, the development will enhance the local character, as
required by Local Plan Policy HD14, and in the draft Local Plan Policy
ORC2.
7.28 The mitigation of landscape and visual impacts during the construction
phase can be achieved through a Construction Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP), and secured by condition. This can include,
but would not be limited to, the control of lighting to construction
compounds and haul roads, and the sensitive design of site hoardings.
The CEMP should also address how the roots of existing trees will be
protected.
Quality of design
7.29 The NPPF sets out the overarching design aims, stating, inter-alia that
the “creation of high quality buildings and places is fundamental to what
the planning and development process should achieve.” (cf. paragraph
124 of the NPPF). While there are limitations to the design statements
that can be delivered through a road project, the context of the proposed
development was highlighted to the applicant at a pre-application stage.

1
2

Tree Schedule, tree number 5 – category B – moderate quality
Historic Environment Record MHT 5692

Agenda Pack Page 22

20

7.30 The submitted elevations provide limited detail in respect of the external
materials to be used and the borough council has been critical of design,
in that it is “no more than an engineering solution for a new bridge and
connecting link across the New River”. The scheme proposes a concrete
finish to the facing sides of the bridge, treated with an anti-graffiti paint.
This is consistent with the bridge over the railway line, further east along
Essex Road (cf. Section 6.10 of the Planning Statement).
7.31 However, the proposed development is a gateway into Hoddesdon
Business Park, rather than a bridge within an industrial setting. These
concerns, and need for compliance with the overarching design
aspirations of the NPPF have been raised with the applicant in light of
the consultation. The applicant has agreed to provide photomontages of
the possible finishes for consideration by the Development Control
Committee. These documents were not available at the time of writing,
and any submission would be subject to control by robust conditions and
considered in consultation with the borough council.
Impact on ecology and biodiversity
7.32 The NPPF states that the planning system should seek to contribute to
and enhance the natural and local environment, and to provide net
biodiversity gains (cf. paragraph 170 of the NPPF), and this is reflected
in the adopted local plan policy guidance. Hertfordshire Ecology finds
that the road bridge would cause both the direct loss of habitat, which
would be significant at a site and local level. This direct loss is further
exacerbated by the introduction of a physical and environmental
ecological barrier across what is already a small site, isolating
populations.
7.33 It is found that the significant ecological impacts have been identified
and some mitigation proposed, with residual impact compensated for by
landscaping. The relocation of the habitat for a protected species is
informed by discussions with Natural England, and also avoid areas of
compensatory floodplain. The small scale of the site limits the
opportunity for biodiversity gains, and on that basis it is recommended
that provision is made for a Biodiversity Offsetting payment, which can
be secured through condition.
7.34 Subject to biodiversity offsetting and the implementation of a landscape
and ecological management plan (LEMP), the proposed development is
compliant with the over-arching biodiversity aims of the NPPF, and with
Local Plan Polices GBC17 and GBC19. The LEMP will be subject to
consultation with both Hertfordshire Ecology, and with the Environment
Agency due to the encroachment on the Woollens Brook.
Flood Risk
7.35 The Lead Local Flood Authority are satisfied that the proposed
development can be adequately drained and can mitigate any potential
existing surface water flood risk, if carried out in accordance with the

Agenda Pack Page 23

21

submitted drainage strategy. The drainage strategy has been calculated
with sufficient capacity for a 1 in 100 year rainfall event plus a 40%
allowance for climate change event.
7.36 The proposed development is therefore compliant with flood risk and
sustainability policies at a local and national level, subject to securing
the mitigation measures through condition.
Impact on residential amenity (e.g. noise, light, air quality)
7.37 The application is supported by a Noise and Vibration Assessment, and
by a Lighting Impact Assessment, to consider the potential impact on
neighbouring amenity during the construction process and the on-going
use of the proposed development.
7.38 The assessment concludes that the day time construction noise levels
during the works have been assessed as causing a temporary significant
effects at 1 – 47 Lampits (for a period of six months), 55 Lampits (for a
period of one month) and the allotments to the south of the scheme, and
as not significant at other receptors. These calculations do not take into
account the potential screening from the natural landform, the formation
of cuttings as work progresses or from purpose built noise barriers,
although it is acknowledged that such noise barriers would be less
effective at the higher levels of the flats at 1 – 47 Lampits.
7.39 Noise levels can be regulated through good practice, as specified in BS
5228-1 Annex B – Noise sources, remedies and their effectiveness, and
where necessary with formal resolution via the statutory Section 61
Control of Pollution Act 1974 procedure. These measures can be
included in a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP),
and secured through condition. There are no night-time works
anticipated other than the final ‘tie-in’ works to link the new bridge to the
existing public highway, which are at the furthest points from the
residential properties on Lampits.
7.40 There are no significant adverse operational noise effects in the
proposed development in the long term.
7.41 In assessing compliance with Local Plan Policy SUS8 (Noisy
Development), it is necessary to consider the timespan of the over which
the noise will be generated, and the character of the adjoining area. The
significant construction noise is estimated to last for six months, and be
restricted to the day time. On the basis that the properties are located
adjacent to a busy road junction, the short term impact is balanced
against a “Do-Minimum” approach, whereby the overall scheme
improves residential amenity through an improved traffic flow and
reduced CO2 emissions.
7.42 Construction and operational vibration levels are assessed as not
significant.

Agenda Pack Page 24

22

7.43 The scheme proposes the use of LED lighting, which are energy
efficient, and directional to minimise light spill. The use of shields further
prevents adverse residential impact, as well as protecting the behaviour
of local bat populations. The lighting layout proposed at G-MP03-OPS1300-DR-EL-01 can be secured through condition, with a post
installation check.
8

Conclusion

8.1 This report has identified a number of impacts that could occur but which
can be adequately managed by the imposition of appropriate conditions,
after taking into account the submitted planning application and
supporting documents.
8.2 On balance, it is determined that the highway improvements of
upgrading a sub-standard but significant access point into Hoddesdon
Business Park, the improved safety for vehicles, cyclists and
pedestrians, and an improved resilience to the local road network and
key employment area outweigh the temporary adverse impact to
residential amenity during the construction phase thereby meeting a
legitimate planning need. The permanent ecological impacts can be
mitigated through the contribution to an off-set area of biodiversity gain.
8.3 There are outstanding issues around the design and the use of external
materials that need to be resolved, prior to the commencement of
construction. The applicant has indicated a willingness to improve the
quality of the design, although additional details have not been
submitted prior to report writing.
8.4 The development is compliant with principles of the National Planning
Policy Framework, and the Local Transport Plan 2018 – 2031 in
delivering highway improvements to achieve a safe and resilient local
transport network, supporting non-motorised forms of transport. While
potential adverse impacts have been identified, the imposition of robust
conditions can minimise against harm to landscape, visual impact,
ecology, biodiversity, residential amenity and cultural heritage.
9

Conditions

9.1 The recommendation to approve the proposed development is subject to
the following TWENTY-ONE conditions:1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.

Time limit for commencement
Approved plans and documents
Materials used in Construction
Landscaping Plan
Landscape and Ecological Management Plan
Design and Structural Details
Stage 1 Road Safety Audit
Additional plans and details
Traffic Regulation Order

Agenda Pack Page 25

23

10. Rights of Way
11. Construction Traffic Management Plan
12. Mud on the road
13. Drainage Strategy (1)
14. Drainage Strategy (2)
15. Drainage Network Maintenance Plan
16. Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation (1)
17. Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation (2)
18. Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation (3)
19. Lighting
20. Badgers
21. Fencing/Boundary Treatment

Agenda Pack Page 26

24

Background information used by the author in compiling this report
Planning application reference 7/0135-19 including supporting documents
Consultee responses
Relevant policy documents:
National Planning Policy Framework 2018
The Broxbourne Local Plan Second Review 2001 – 2011
The emerging Broxbourne Local Plan 2018 – 2033
Essex Road Gateway Development Brief (April 2011)
Hoddesdon Business Plan Improvement Plan (September 2013)
Local Transport Plan 4 2018 - 2033
Appendices
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

General Arrangement
Site Plan
Consultation response from Broxbourne Borough Council
Consultation response from the Highway Authority
Mitigation measures proposed by the County Council Landscape Officer

Agenda Pack Page 27

25

DRAFT CONDITIONS
1.

Time Limit for commencement
The development to which this planning permission relates shall be
begun no later than three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and
Country Act 1990 (as amended).

2.

Approved Plans
The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out otherwise
than in complete accordance with the details submitted in the
application dated 15 November 2018.
















Site location plan G-MP032-HCC-0001-DR-Z-01 Rev P01 dated
17/09/18
Site plan G-MP032-HCC-0001-DR-Z-02 Rev P01 dated 17/09/18
General Arrangement G-MP032-HCC-0001-DR-Z-03 Rev P01
revised 18/09/18
Embankment Cross Section (Typical Section) G-MP032-HCC-0001DR-Z-04 Rev P01 revised 18/09/18
Structures Elevations G-MP032-OPS-0001-DR-CB-01 Rev P01
revised 06/06/18
Structures Cross Sections G-MP032-OPS-0001-DR-CB-02 Rev P01
revised 14/05/18
Footbridge Elevation G-MP032-OPS-0001-DR-CB-03 Rev P01
revised 09/05/18
Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy G-MP032OPS0004-RP-CW-02 Issue 2 dated June 2018
Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy Addendum Report
G-MP032OPS-0004-RP-CW-02 Issue 3 dated October 2018
Tree Constraints Plan G-MP032-KEE-DR-X-01-TCP_P01.2 Rev A
dated 11.05.18
Tree Protection Plan G-MP032-KEE-DR-X-01-TPP_P01.2 Rev A
dated 11.05.18
Tree Survey and Impact Assessment G-MP032-KEE-RP-X-01 Dated
November 2018
Lighting Impact Assessment G-MP032-OPS-1300-RP-EL-01 Dated
November 2018
Soft Landscape Specification Maintenance and Management GMP032-ARP-0004-SP-L-01 dated November 2018
Badger Mitigation Strategy G-MP032-ARP-3000-RP-EC-02 dated
November 2018

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.

Agenda Pack Page 28

26

3.

Materials used in construction
Prior to the commencement of any development, details of the materials
proposed for the external elevations of the development shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning Authority.
Only those materials that have been approved under this condition shall
be used for the development hereby approved.
Reason: In the interests of local amenity and to ensure a cohesive design as
relates to the local environment.

4.

Landscaping plan; including tree protection and habitat improvements
Prior to commencement, a detailed landscaping scheme shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning Authority
which shall include the following details:
The details of the replacement trees to compensate for those removed to
accommodate the temporary construction compound,
 The details of the attenuation ponds, which should seek to be
more naturalistic and informal,
 The design and materials for the new and resurfaced footpaths,
 Revised details of the fenceline on the southern side of the road
bridge, in respect of the notable retained Oak tree,
 Introduction of vegetation to the southern side of the road bridge,
 Details of a new informal row of trees to be located along the
southern side of Essex Road and to the western edge of the
restored construction compound,
 Details of the hedgerow to be planted along the back of the
existing fencing associated with the pump house, and
 Details of the size, species, density and location of trees.
The landscape scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved programme hereafter.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity and the habitat enhancement of
the area.

5.

Landscape and ecological management plan (Environment Agency)
No development shall take commence until a scheme for the provision
and management of compensatory habitat creation (local impact
mitigation), along with a landscape and ecological management plan,
including long-term objectives, management responsibilities and
maintenance schedules, shall be submitted to, and agreed in writing by,
the County Planning Authority and implemented as approved. The
landscape and ecological management plan shall be carried out as
approved with any subsequent variations agreed in writing by the
County Planning Authority. The scheme shall include the following
elements:
 Detailed plans for habitat creation and/or improvement, including
any planting plans, river cross sections and plan view designs
 Habitat regimes

Agenda Pack Page 29

27





Details of any new habitat created on site
Details of treatment of site boundaries and/or buffers around
water bodies
Details of management responsibilities

Reason: Development that encroaches on the Woollens Brook will affect its
ecological value. Paragraph 175 of the NPPF states that if significant harm
resulting from a development cannot be avoided (through locating on an
alternative site with less harmful impacts), adequately mitigated, or, as a last
resort, compensated for, then planning permission should be refused.
6.

Design and structural details (Highways Authority)
Prior to commencement of the development, the applicant shall comply
fully with the requirements of the Department for Transport’s DMRB
Standard BD 2/12: Technical Approval of Highway Structures and HD
22/08 Managing Geotechnical Risk. The Approval in Principle and
Design and Check Certification, accompanied by full structural details,
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the County Planning
Authority before any work commences. All works shall then proceed in
accordance with the details submitted and Construction Compliance
certification and documentation submitted to the Highway Authority.
Reason: In the interests of public safety, to ensure that construction of the
development hereby permitted does not affect the stability of the public
highway and water channel.

7.

Stage 1 Road Safety Audit (Highway Authority)
Before development commences, a further Stage 1 Road Safety Audit
(RSA1) shall be undertaken which extends the scope of the assessment
area to include the section of Dinant Link Road running from the Dinant
Link Road / Essex Road / Charlton Way roundabout to Burford Street. A
Designer’s Response to any issues and recommendations identified in
the RSA1 shall be submitted and the final plans approved by the County
Planning Authority through a Road Safety Review.
Reason: To ensure the safety issues in relation to the proposed reduction
from 3 lanes to 2 lanes along Dinant Link Road, on the eastbound approach
to the Dinant Link Road / Essex Road / Charlton Way roundabout, are suitably
considered and addressed.

8.

Additional details and plans (Highway Authority)
Before development commences, additional details and plans, drawn to
an appropriate scale, must be submitted and approved in writing by the
County Planning Authority which clearly show the detailed design and
construction of all works within the public highway, those areas to be
adopted as public highway, and any other infrastructure which forms
part of this scheme, as shown indicatively on drawing number G-MP032HCC-0001-DR-Z-03. This shall include, but is not limited to:
 All works external to the site.
 Detailed road layouts.

Agenda Pack Page 30

28







Proposed highway adoption.
Drainage provision.
Street lighting proposals (a Lighting Impact Assessment).
All highway and right of way signage.
Further details of landscaping/foliage proposed across the study
area.
 Details of timing and routes of diversions, road closures and
anticipated delays.
All these works shall be constructed as approved by the County
Planning Authority, and fully completed before first operational use of
the development.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and convenience, and in
accordance with LTP4 policies and Roads in Herts technical guidance.
9.

Traffic Regulation Order (Highway Authority)
Before first use of the development, an application shall be made for a
Traffic Regulation Order with approved supporting physical features
(e.g. signage, bollards) along the existing Essex Road bridge to stop all
through-traffic, except vehicles associated with emergency access or
highway maintenance purposes.
Reason: To ensure the existing Essex Road bridge link serves motorised
traffic associated only with sites along its length and nothing beyond this, in
the interests of highway safety and convenience.

10.

Rights of Way (Highway Authority)
Prior to construction of the development, details of the construction and
maintenance of all Public Rights of Way and footpaths within the
application area shall be approved by the County Planning Authority and
maintained thereafter. Any existing public rights of way
abutting/crossing/approaching the site shall remain undisturbed and
unobstructed at all times unless legally stopped up or diverted prior to
the commencement of the development hereby permitted. The
alignment of any public right of way shall be protected throughout the
course of the development in accordance with details approved in
writing by the County Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of right of way users, and compliance with LTP4.

11.

Construction Traffic Management Plan (Highway Authority)
Prior to the commencement of the development, a ‘Construction Traffic
Management Plan’ shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Planning Authority. Thereafter the construction of the development
shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved Plan. The
‘Construction Traffic Management Plan’ shall identify details of:
 The phasing of construction and proposed construction
programme.
 The methods for accessing the site, including wider construction
vehicle routing.

Agenda Pack Page 31

29










The numbers of daily construction vehicles including details of
their sizes, at each phase of the development.
The hours of operation and construction vehicle movements.
Details of any highway works necessary to enable construction to
take place.
Details of construction vehicle parking, turning and
loading/unloading arrangements clear of the public highway.
Details of how the safety of existing public highway users and
existing public right of way users will be maintained.
The details of any other Construction Sites in the local area.
Waste management proposals.
Temporary Signage

Reason: To ensure the impact of construction vehicles on the local road
network is minimised.
12.

Mud on the road (Highway Authority)
Vehicles leaving the development site during the construction of the
development shall be in a condition so as not to emit dust or deposit
mud, slurry or other debris on the highway. In particular (but without
prejudice to the foregoing) efficient means shall be installed prior to
commencement of the development and thereafter maintained and
employed at all times during construction of the development, to include
cleaning the wheels of all construction vehicles leaving the site.
Reason: In order to minimise the amount of mud, soil and other materials
originating from the site being deposited on the highway, and in the interests
of highway safety and visual amenity.

13.

Drainage strategy (LLFA)
The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried
out in accordance with the Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage
Strategy reference G-MP032-OPS-0004-RP-CW-03 dated November 2018
and the following mitigation measures: Undertaking an appropriate drainage strategy based on
attenuation and discharge into Woollens Brook restricted to a
maximum of 10l/s for all events up to and including the 1 in 100
year + climate change event.
 Provide attenuation to ensure no increase in surface water run-off
volumes for all rainfall events up to and including the 1 in 100 year
+ climate change event.
 Implement drainage strategy based on discharge into Woollens
Brook with lined pond features and ditches into vortex flow
control devices as indicated on the proposed drainage strategy
drawing reference 500-01.
Reason: To reduce the risk of flooding to the proposed development and
future occupants.

Agenda Pack Page 32

30

14.

Drainage strategy (2) (LLFA)
No development shall take place until the final design of the drainage
scheme is submitted to and approved by the County Planning Authority.
The surface water drainage system will be based on the submitted Flood
Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy reference G-MP032-OPS-0004RP-CW-03 dated November 2018. The scheme shall also include
detailed engineering drawings of the proposed SuDS features including
their location, size, volume, depth, and any inlet and outlet features
including any connecting pipe runs and all corresponding
calculations/modelling to ensure the scheme caters for all rainfall events
up to and including the 1 in 100 year +40% allowance for climate change
event. The plan should show any pipe ‘node numbers’ that have been
referred to in the network calculations and it should also show invert
and cover levels of manholes. The development shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage of and
disposal of surface water from the site.

15.

Drainage network maintenance (LLFA)
Upon completion of the drainage works for each site in accordance with
the timing / phasing arrangements, a management and maintenance
plan for the SuDS features and drainage network must be submitted to
and approved in writing by the County Planning Authority. The scheme
shall include;
1. Provision of complete set of as built drawings for site drainage.
2. Maintenance and operational activities.
3. Arrangements for adoption and any other measures to secure the
operation of the scheme throughout its lifetime.
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.
Reason: To prevent flooding by ensuring the satisfactory storage of/disposal
of surface water from the site.

16.

Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation (Historic Environment)
No demolition/development shall take place/commence until an
Archaeological Written Scheme of Investigation has been submitted to
and approved by the County Planning Authority in writing. The scheme
shall include an assessment of archaeological significance and research
questions; and:
 The programme and methodology of site investigation and
recording as suggested by the evaluation
 The programme for post investigation assessment
 Provision to be made for analysis of the site investigation and
recording
 Provision to be made for publication and dissemination of the
analysis and records of the site investigation.

Agenda Pack Page 33

31




Provision to be made for archive deposition of the analysis and
records of the site investigation
Nomination of a competent person or persons/organisation to
undertake the works set out within the Archaeological Written
Scheme of Investigation.

The demolition/development shall take place/commence in accordance
with the programme of archaeological works set out in the approved
Written Scheme of Investigation.
Reason: To protect the archaeological interests of the site.
17.

Archaeological WSI (2) (Historic Environment)
The demolition/development shall take place/commence in accordance
with the programme of archaeological works set out in the Written
Scheme of Investigation approved under condition 16.
Reason: To protect the archaeological interests of the site.

18.

Archaeological WSI (3) (Historic Environment)
The development shall not be occupied/used until the site investigation
and post investigation assessment has been completed in accordance
with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation
approved under condition 16 and the provision made for analysis and
publication where appropriate.
Reason: To protect the archaeological interests of the site.

19.

Lighting
The lighting shall be installed in accordance with the layout proposed at
G-MP03-OPS-1300-DR-EL-01. The glare and spill of the lighting shall be
reviewed after six months, and before 12 months, of the development
coming into operation.
Reason: To minimise light pollution in the form of glare and spill.

20.

Badgers
The detailed proposals for the management and protection of badgers,
and measures for the mitigation of any harm to them likely to be caused
by the development, shall be carried out in full as specified in the
submitted Badger Mitigation Strategy, ref: G-MP032-ARP-3000-RP-EC01.
Reason: To ensure the protection of important species and those protected by
legislation.

Agenda Pack Page 34

32

21.

Fencing/boundary treatment
Construction work shall not commence until fencing, of a type to be
approved by the County Planning Authority, setting out the boundaries of
the development hereby permitted has been erected. The fencing shall be
maintained throughout the period of construction and unless otherwise
agreed in advance in writing by the County Planning Authority, there shall
be no working, storage of surplus material or incursion of construction
vehicles outside of the area so defined.
Reason: To define the permitted area of development and to restrict
unauthorised entry to the construction site.
INFORMATIVES
Cadent – Informative 1
Affected Apparatus
The National Grid apparatus that has been identified as being in the vicinity of
your proposed works is:
 High or Intermediate pressure (above 2 bar) Gas Pipelines and
associated equipment. (As a result it is highly likely that there are gas
services and associated apparatus in the vicinity).
Requirements
BEFORE carrying out any work you must:
 Carefully read these requirements including the attached guidance
documents and maps showing the location of National Grid apparatus.
 Contact the landowner and ensure any proposed works in private land
do not infringe National Grid's legal rights (i.e. easements or
wayleaves). If the works are in the road or footpath the relevant local
authority should be contacted.
 Ensure that all persons, including direct labour and contractors,
working for you on or near National Grid's apparatus follow the
requirements of the HSE Guidance Notes HSG47 - 'Avoiding Danger
from Underground Services' and GS6 – 'Avoidance of danger from
overhead electric power lines'. This guidance can be downloaded free
of charge at http://www.hse.gov.uk
 In line with the above guidance, verify and establish the actual position
of mains, pipes and cables, services and other apparatus on site below
any activities are undertaken.
Cadent – Informative 2
Cadent have identified operational gas apparatus within the application site
boundary. This may include a legal interest (easements or wayleaves) in the
land which restricts activity in proximity to Cadent assets in private land. The
Applicant must ensure that proposed works do not infringe on Cadent’s legal
rights and any details of such restrictions should be obtained from the
landowner in the first instance.
If buildings or structures are proposed directly above the gas apparatus then
development should only take place following a diversion of this apparatus.

Agenda Pack Page 35

33

The Applicant should contact Cadent’s Plant Protection Team at the earliest
opportunity to discuss proposed diversions of apparatus to avoid any
unnecessary delays.
If any construction traffic is likely to cross a Cadent pipeline then the Applicant
must contact Cadent’s Plant Protection Team to see if any protection
measures are required.
All developers are required to contact Cadent’s Plant Protection Team for
approval before carrying out any works on site and ensuring requirements are
adhered to.
Email: plantprotection@cadentgas.com Tel: 0800 688 588
Highway Authority – Informative 1
Highway structural considerations. The applicant is advised that in order to
comply with Condition 1 of this permission it will be necessary for the
developer of the site to contact the Hertfordshire County Council Bridge Asset
Manager in connection with the requirements of Department for Transport
Standard BD 2/12: Technical Approval of Highway Structures. Further details
can be obtained from the Highway Authority at County Hall, Pegs Lane,
Hertford, Herts, SG13 8DN (Telephone: 0300 1234047, email:
highway.structures@hertfordshire.gov.uk).
Highway Authority – Informative 2
Construction standards for works within the highway: Any works to be
undertaken on the public highway associated with this development shall be
constructed to the satisfaction and specification of the Highway Authority and
in accordance with Hertfordshire County Council’s publication "Roads in
Hertfordshire – Highway Design Guide (2011)". Further information is
available via the website https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/highwaysroads-and-pavements/highways-roads-and-pavements.aspx or by telephoning
0300 1234047.

Agenda Pack Page 36

34

8c

O

lens

ok

R

O

TS

LD
E
FI

X

R

O

90

Bro

13

11
4
Wool

AD

1

ROT
TS F
IELD

83

PAR

12

to

ES
SE

9

LD

31.4m

R
PA

12

35
to

Oaklands Yard

55

4

10

0

7

Maytrees

8 to

34

ive
r

ROUNDABOUT ENTRY
LANE REDUCTION

A1
0

A
DIN1170
AN
TL
INK

NO THROUGH ACCESS ALONG
EXISTING ESSEX ROAD

ATTENUATION
POND

RO

AD

wR

EXISTING ACCESS TO
OAKLANDS YARD RETAINED

Ne

300 mm

ESESSEX
SEX RO
ROAD
AD

EXISTING ESSEX ROAD
TO BE NARROWED

Works

HODDE
SDON
BUSINE
SS PAR
K

34

.1
m

STAGGERED TOUCAN CROSSING

EXISTING ACCESS TO PUMP
STATION RETAINED

W

OO

33.2m

LL

EN

S

BR

P
ST UM
AT P
IO
N

200

OO

Agenda Pack Page 37

K

TOUCAN CROSSING
RETAINING
WALL

ESS

EX

Pumping
Station

ROAD

GED
D
ING
SR

32.9m

BR
K

DAVROC

RI

A11
CH 70
AR
LTO

OO

W
NE

NW

S
EN

AY

ATTENUATION
POND

OAD

NEW RIVER BRIDGE

LL

100

OO

W

SHARED PATH

R

VE

TR

E

Pa

th

(u

m

)

50

Depot

TO

The A

1 to 47

0

WN
C

10 mm

EN

LAMPITS

55

LAM

PITS

53

rk
Childr
ens C
entre

Allotment Gardens
ALLOTMENT
GARDENS

Subway
NOTES:
1.
2.
3.
4.

LEGEND:

ORIGINAL DRAWING WAS PRODUCED IN COLOUR.
DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.
ALL DIMENSIONS ARE IN METRES UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.
ALL LEVELS ARE IN METRES UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED.

EXISTING
CARRIAGEWAY

0

Original Sheet Size A1 [841x594]

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

PROPOSED
CARRIAGEWAY

PROPOSED
TACTILE
PAVING

Revision

Description

Approved

Revision Date

P01

ISSUED FOR PLANNING

N.SMITH

18/09/18

Project

© Crown copyright and database right to 2018 Ordnance Survey 100019606
You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in
any form.
(This restriction may not apply to HCC and its licensed contractors, agents & partners.)

PROPOSED KERBLINE

45

50

m

EXISTING
VERGE

PROPOSED
FOOTWAY

PROPOSED
VERGE

PROPOSED
EARTHWORKS

PROPOSED
FOOTPATH

PROPOSED BOLLARDS

PROPOSED
FOOTBRIDGE

Plot Date 18 Sep 2018 @ 1:00 PM Path C:\Users\pmc160\Opus International Consultants Ltd\New River Bridge - Working Documents\Drawings\0001 - GENERAL\G-MP032-HCC-0001-DR-Z-03_GeneralArrangement.dwg G-MP032-HCC-0001-DR-Z-03 GeneralArrangement

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
HODDESDON
NEW RIVER BRIDGE
Drawing Title

PROPOSED FENCELINE
EXISTING
FOOTWAY

1:500 @ A1
1:1000 @ A3

FOR PLANNING APPROVAL

COUNTY HALL
Pegs Lane
Hertford, Herts
SG13 8DN
Phone: 01992 555555

GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

Designed

Approved

Approved Date

P.MCCARTHY

N.SMITH

17/09/18

Drawn

Scales

Drawing No.

Revision

P.MCCARTHY

1:500@A1

G-MP032-HCC-0001-DR-Z-03

P01

This page is intentionally left blank

F
A1170

Proposed
No Through Area
Pump Station
Essex Road

Proposed New Carriageway
and Footway (New River Bridge)

Application
Boundary

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 OS EUL 100019606

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE
Date: Wednesday 27th March 2019

Proposed new access road and bridge between the A1170
Dinant roundabout and Essex Road into the Hoddesdon
Business Park at Essex Road, Hoddesdon, Herts, EN11 0QX
0

40

80

120

160

200

240

280

320

360
Meters

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance Survey EUL 100019606
You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form. Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions

Agenda Pack Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX 3 – Consultation response from Broxbourne Borough Council
Dear Ms Threlfall
PL\0962\18 - New access and bridge, between Dinant Roundabout and Essex
Road Hoddesdon
You may be aware that this Council has received legal opinion that this planning
application properly falls to be determined by Broxbourne Borough Council. Given
the contortions of the regulations, I considered that opinion to be clear. I have seen
the County Council’s counter opinion and have to say that I found it somewhat
bizarre and did not agree with the content. Our own barrister has in turn advised that
this could only be properly resolved in court.
Given that this Council has always supported the principle of a new crossing at
Essex Road, it is not minded to progress legal action in respect of this planning
application. I am also now instructing Diane Parsley to register the application in
order that it can be progressed. That registration is without prejudice to this Council’s
belief that it should be the determining Planning Authority and to any action that it
may wish to take on any future planning applications where the County Council is not
deemed to be the responsible authority for determination.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, a report on this planning application was considered
by this Council’s Planning and Regulatory Committee on 30th January 2019. A copy
of that report is enclosed and I would consequently offer the following comments in
respect of the application that are consistent with the resolution of the Committee:
Congestion
Essex Road is severely congested during the morning and evening peaks which is of
great concern to this Council. The main cause of that congestion is the signalised
junction at Pindar Road which creates back-ups that in the morning peak can extend
westwards to the approach to the Dinant roundabout. Implemented in connection
with more extensive improvements to the Essex Road corridor, this scheme is
considered to be the correct engineering solution. However, in a standalone
situation, this Council is concerned that congestion will be exacerbated by the
reduction from three lanes to two on the western approach to the roundabout. The
solution is for further progress to be made on the wider network improvements and
this Council is disappointed that the Essex Road Corridor Study that has been
produced by Aecom has not to date concluded on those solutions. Notwithstanding
this, it is considered that the results of the Essex Road Study should be reported to
your members for their consideration in determining this planning application.
Landscaping
One of the main purposes of this scheme is to create a gateway into Hoddesdon
Business Park. However, the application scheme is no more than an engineering
solution for a new bridge and connecting link across the New River. In its role as a
planning authority, it would be remiss of the County Council to approve the
application without a condition that requires a comprehensive landscape plan for the

Agenda Pack Page 41

37

lands to the north and south of the road. This Council retains some monies that
could be dedicated to the implementation of that landscape plan.
Scheme Details
This Council is concerned about the potential environmental impact of the three
metre acoustic screen fence along the southern boundary of the new road and would
like the height, extent and detail of that fence to be the subject of review through
condition. This Council also needs to be convinced that lighting, boundary fencing,
signage, external finishing materials to the main structure and the stopping up of the
existing road alignment will be of a quality that will provide a major environmental
enhancement and gateway on the approach to the Business Park. Please could all
of these therefore be subject to condition to enable detailed dialogue to take place
between our respective councils to agree the scheme details. Again, this Council
may be prepared to dedicate some monies to ensuring that this scheme provides a
design and environmental legacy for Hoddesdon.
Conclusion
Broxbourne Council is supportive of this planning application provided that:
1. Substantive progress is made on the design and implementation of measures
to reduce traffic congestion along the Essex Road Corridor;
2. The scheme creates an attractive gateway into Hoddesdon Business Park
and an environmental legacy for Hoddesdon. Appropriate conditions should
be included on any planning permission to ensure this outcome; and
3. That this Council continues to be involved in the detailed design and
implementation of the scheme
Assuming that this application is approved we will continue to work with the County
Council to achieve both of those ends.
Yours sincerely

Douglas Cooper
Head of Planning and Development

Agenda Pack Page 42

38

ANNEX 4 – Consultation response from The Highway Authority
Location
Essex Road
Hoddesdon
EN11 0QX
Application type
Full application
Proposal
New access and bridge between the A1170 Dinant Roundabout and Essex Road into
the Hoddesdon Business Park at Essex Road, Hoddesdon, Hertfordshire, EN11 0QX.
Decision
Notice is given under article 18 of the Town and Country Planning (Development
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 that the Hertfordshire County Council
as Highway Authority does not wish to restrict the grant of permission subject to the
following conditions:
1) Prior to commencement of the development, the applicant shall comply fully with
the requirements of the Department for Transport’s DMRB Standard BD 2/12:
Technical Approval of Highway Structures and HD 22/08 Managing Geotechnical
Risk. The Approval in Principle and Design and Check Certification, accompanied by
full structural details, shall be submitted and approved in writing by the Planning
Authority and Highway Authority before any work commences. All works shall then
proceed in accordance with the details submitted and Construction Compliance
certification and documentation submitted to the Highway Authority. Reason: In the
interests of public safety, to ensure that construction of the development hereby
permitted does not affect the stability of the public highway and water channel.
2) Before development commences, a further Stage 1 Road Safety Audit (RSA1)
shall be undertaken which extends the scope of the assessment area to include the
section of Dinant Link Road running from the Dinant Link Road / Essex Road /
Charlton Way roundabout to Burford Street. A Designer’s Response to any issues
and recommendations identified in the RSA1 shall be submitted and the final plans
approved by the Highway Authority through a Road Safety Review. Reason: To
ensure the safety issues in relation to the proposed reduction from 3 lanes to 2 lanes
along Dinant Link Road, on the eastbound approach to the Dinant Link Road / Essex
Road / Charlton Way roundabout, are suitably considered and addressed.
3) Before development commences, additional details and plans, drawn to an
appropriate scale, must be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, in consultation with the Highway Authority, which clearly show the detailed
design and construction of all works within the public highway, those areas to be
adopted as public highway, and any other infrastructure which forms part of this
scheme, as shown indicatively on drawing number G-MP032-HCC-0001-DR-Z-03.
This shall include, but is not limited to:
• All works external to the site.
• Detailed road layouts.
• Proposed highway adoption.
• Drainage provision.
• Street lighting proposals (a Lighting Impact Assessment).
• Traffic Regulation Order details for the existing Essex Road bridge link.

Agenda Pack Page 43

39

• All highway and right of way signage.
• Further details of landscaping/foliage proposed across the study area.
All these works shall be constructed to the specification of the Highway Authority and
Local Planning Authority's satisfaction, and fully completed before first operational
use of the development. Reason: In the interests of highway safety and
convenience, and in accordance with LTP4 policies and Roads in Herts technical
guidance.
4) Before first use of the development, best endeavours shall be made to implement
a Traffic Regulation Order with approved supporting physical features (e.g. signage,
bollards) along the existing Essex Road bridge to stop all through-traffic, except
vehicles associated with emergency access or highway maintenance purposes.
Reason: To ensure the existing Essex Road bridge link serves motorised traffic
associated only with sites along its length and nothing beyond this, in the interests of
highway safety and convenience.
5) Prior to construction of the development, details of the construction and
maintenance of all Public Rights of Way and footpaths associated with the
development shall be agreed with the County Council's Rights of Way Unit and
maintained thereafter. Any existing public rights of way
abutting/crossing/approaching the site shall remain undisturbed and unobstructed at
all times unless legally stopped up or diverted prior to the commencement of the
development hereby permitted. The alignment of any public right of way shall be
protected by temporary fencing/signing in accordance with details first submitted to,
and approved in writing by, the Planning Authority throughout the course of the
development. Reason: In the interests of right of way users, and compliance with
LTP4.
6) Prior to the commencement of the development, a ‘Construction Traffic
Management Plan’ shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning
Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority. Thereafter the construction of
the development shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved Plan.
The ‘Construction Traffic Management Plan’ shall identify details of:
• The phasing of construction and proposed construction programme.
• The methods for accessing the site, including wider construction vehicle routing.
• The numbers of daily construction vehicles including details of their sizes, at each
phase of the development.
• The hours of operation and construction vehicle movements.
• Details of any highway works necessary to enable construction to take place.
• Details of construction vehicle parking, turning and loading/unloading arrangements
clear of the public highway.
• Details of any hoardings.
• Details of how the safety of existing public highway users and existing public right
of way users will be maintained.
• Control of dirt and dust on the public highway, including details of the location and
methods to wash construction vehicle wheels.
• The provision for addressing any abnormal wear and tear to the highway.
• The details of consultation with local businesses or neighbours.
• The details of any other Construction Sites in the local area.
• Waste management proposals.

Agenda Pack Page 44

40

• Temporary Signage
Reason: To ensure the impact of construction vehicles on the local road network is
minimised.
7) Best practical means shall be taken at all times to ensure that all vehicles leaving
the development site during construction of the development are in a condition such
as not emit dust or deposit mud, slurry or other debris on the highway. In particular
(but without prejudice to the foregoing) efficient means shall be installed prior to
commencement of the development and thereafter maintained and employed at all
times during construction of the development, to include cleaning the wheels of all
construction vehicles leaving the site. Reason: In order to minimise the amount of
mud, soil and other materials originating from the site being deposited on the
highway, and in the interests of highway safety and visual amenity.
HIGHWAY INFORMATIVES:
The Highway Authority recommends the inclusion of the following Advisory Notes
(ANs) to ensure that any works as part of this development are carried out in
accordance with the provisions of the Highways Act 1980 and other relevant
processes.
AN1) Highway structural considerations. The applicant is advised that in order to
comply with Condition 1 of this permission it will be necessary for the developer of
the site to contact the Hertfordshire County Council Bridge Asset Manager in
connection with the requirements of Department for Transport Standard BD 2/12:
Technical Approval of Highway Structures. Further details can be obtained from the
Highway Authority at County Hall, Pegs Lane, Hertford, Herts, SG13 8DN
(Telephone: 0300 1234047, email: highway.structures@hertfordshire.gov.uk).
AN2) Construction standards for works within the highway: Any works to be
undertaken on the public highway associated with this development shall be
constructed to the satisfaction and specification of the Highway Authority and in
accordance with Hertfordshire County Council’s publication "Roads in Hertfordshire –
Highway Design Guide (2011)". Further information is available via the website
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/services/highways-roads-and-pavements/highwaysroads-and-pavements.aspx or by telephoning 0300 1234047.

Agenda Pack Page 45

41

COMMENTS:
1. BACKGROUND
This application for a new bridge over the New River serving the Hoddesdon
Business Park (and associated redesign of the A1170 / Essex Road / Charlton Way
roundabout) includes several detailed plans of the proposed bridge, a Transport
Statement (TS), and a Planning Statement (PS).
This report examines in detail the information submitted by the applicant and
concludes that, subject to the above conditions, the proposal is acceptable in a
highways context.
2. OVERVIEW OF EXISTING NETWORK
2.1 Existing Highway Network
The current bridge forms part of Essex Road, a C classified secondary distributor
road subject to a 30mph speed limit. This is the primary route into the Hoddesdon
Business Park, linking onto the A road network via the A1170 / Essex Road /
Charlton Way roundabout. The bridge crosses over Woollens Brook, a small brook,
and the New River, an artificial waterway to supply part of London’s drinking water.
There is footway of around 1.3 metres on the northern side of Essex Road, below
the recommended minimum width of 2 metres. There is no segregated facility for
cyclists.
The A1170 is a main distributor principal A road, much of which is also subject to a
30mph speed limit. It runs parallel to the A10 in a southerly direction, serving large
parts of Hoddesdon, Broxbourne, Wormley and Turnford. To the north it serves Rye
Park, Great Amwell and Ware. The Hoddesdon Link Road to the west connects to
the A10, one of the key north-south strategic routes in the county.
Secondary routes into the Hoddesdon Business Park are available from the east via
Dobbs Weir Road and from the north via Fishermans Way. These routes both have
Heavy Goods Vehicles restrictions on them.
2.2 Existing Right of Way Network
Hoddesdon 053 footpath runs along the New River towpath in a northerly direction to
Rye Road. Hoddesdon footpath 054 runs in southerly direction to Lampits. Both are
accessible from Essex Road via metal kissing gates. Hoddesdon footpath 015, also
accessible from a kissing gate, links Essex Road to Charlton Way. The surface of
these routes varies in width and quality.
2.3 Passenger Transport Network
There are no bus routes currently serving Essex Road. The closest stops are located
along Brewery Road (next to Sainsbury’s) and are regularly served throughout the
day by a number of services. These route across the Borough of Broxbourne and
beyond (e.g. to Ware, Hertford and Hatfield). There are also stops some 600 metres

Agenda Pack Page 46

42

away along Rye Road, at the junction with Crossfield Road. This is served by the
410 service which routes along Harlow, Stanstead Abbots, Hoddesdon, Broxbourne,
Cheshunt and Waltham Cross.
In terms of rail, the closest station is Rye House, about 1km away. From here, train
services run typically every half an hour to London Liverpool Street in a southerly
direction and Hertford East in a westerly direction.
2.4 Collision Analysis
A 5-year period has been examined in the TS from April 2011 to March 2016, with a
plan shown in Appendix E. This shows that there were 4 ‘slight’ accidents between
the A1170 / Essex Road / Charlton Way roundabout and Essex Road junction with
Pindar Road (east). There were no serious or fatal accidents during this period.
Two of the accidents involved pedestrians who were struck by vehicles on the
carriageway. The third accident was a rear shunt at the junction of Essex Road /
Pindar Road / Bingley Road. The final accident was a rear shunt on the westbound
approach to the roundabout.
Whilst any accident is regrettable, given the volume of traffic along the sections of
highway described above, the statistics do not demonstrate a level or severity of
accidents which are disproportionate to the amount and type of vehicles (and other
highway users) using them. Any opportunity to improve highway safety should
however be adopted where possible, and this is a key consideration in the
determination of this planning application.
3. APPLICATION DETAILS
3.1 Current Constraints
The TS within the planning application identifies a number of constraints with the
current bridge:
- The carriageway over the bridge is narrow (6.1 metres) compared to current
standards, which results in frequent vehicular footway incursion.
- The vertical alignment over the bridge results in forward visibility lower than current
minimum standards which increases the likelihood of collisions between moving and
queuing traffic.
- The combination of narrow carriageway width and below standard forward visibility
results in traffic slowing down over the bridge which contributes to congestion on
Essex Road.
- The footway over the bridge is narrow (1.3 metres wide average, 1.1 metres wide
minimum) compared to current standards

Agenda Pack Page 47

43

- The New River path crosses Essex Road at grade, without any type of pedestrian
crossing facility, which increases the likelihood of collisions between pedestrians and
motorised vehicles/cyclists.
- A narrow hardened verge of 0.5 metres width on the south side of the existing
bridge is of insufficient width for safe pedestrian use. However, public right of way
footpaths to both banks of the New River join Essex Road at the ends of this
hardened verge which encourages its use as a footway. This is not a desirable setup
for pedestrians.
- There is no dedicated cycle provision over the bridge meaning cyclists must share
the carriageway with motorised vehicles. This lack of separation increases the
likelihood of collisions between motorised vehicles and cyclists.
- The existing bridge is approaching the end of its working life, which means the
frequency of maintenance will increase, which in turn increases the likelihood of
traffic disruption.
- The entry to the A1170 / Essex Road / Charlton Way roundabout from Essex Road
is relatively narrow and has limited amount of flare when compared to the other arms
on the roundabout. Due to the high flows on Essex Road this causes traffic to back
up along Essex Road at peak times.
3.2 Options Consideration
The applicant originally considered the following three options in an attempt to
address the issues above:
1) ‘Do nothing/little’ - This would involve providing new road signage and high friction
surfacing on the approaches to the existing road bridge to warn of hazards and
narrow lane widths. However, it is not considered that this option would solve any of
the identified problems, rather it would result in only a slight reduction in their impact.
2) Online improvements – This would involve the demolition and rebuilding of the
parapets, widening and strengthening the bridge deck, and relocation of the footway
into a new structure which could also incorporate a cycleway. It is considered that
this option would solve most of the problems identified, however it too was also
discounted due to the large amount of disruption that would occur during the
construction phase, given the fact that Essex Road is the sole point of access into
the business park for HGVs.
3) New Offline road - This would provide a new access road with structures over
Woollens Brook and the New River to the south of Essex Road. The applicant chose
this option (which is presented in this planning application) as they consider it
provides a solution to all of the problems identified, and can be constructed with
minimal disruption to existing traffic movements.

Agenda Pack Page 48

44

3.3 The Chosen Proposal
The chosen design of the New River bridge development, will result in a new bridge
with a wider and straighter carriageway compared to the existing bridge, a wider
northern footway compared to the existing route (2 metres), and a new southern 3
metre wide shared pedestrian/cyclist route. It consists of a new 270-metre long
access road between the A1170 / Essex Road / Charlton Way roundabout and the
Essex Road / Geddings Road junction. There will be a 20-metre single span
reinforced concrete bridge over the New River which supports a 6.75m wide
carriageway, footways/cycleways as described above, parapets, and highway
boundary fencing as required. New toucan crossings at both the eastern and
western ends of the new access road is integral to the design. A new footbridge over
Woollens Brook supplements the scheme.
The TS explains that “after the proposed development is implemented, the existing
section of Essex Road that will be bypassed will in effect become a cul-de-sac as no
through entry will be possible during normal use. The Oaklands Yard site has been
granted planning permission for a new housing development, thus the largest vehicle
that is expected to use this section of highway would be a refuse vehicle. It is worth
noting that since there is a provision to reopen the existing bridge in emergency
situations or planned maintenance, the existing road would still be expected to
accommodate two-way HGV use, however since there is already substandard
horizontal/vertical geometry & carriageway widths no attempt will be made to
improve this. Nevertheless, the modifications proposed will still allow this temporary
use case”.
The TS also explains that “As part of the development, allowance has been made for
Thames Water to access the pumping station. As there will be no through route over
the existing bridge, access will be via a new T-Junction onto the new section of
Essex Road. The design vehicle is a large van”.
The applicant considers the main benefits of the scheme to include: Easier passage
for two HGVs to pass each other freely due to the new wider carriageway; Improved
forward visibility over the vertical crest of the bridge compared to the existing,
thereby reducing the likelihood of collisions between moving and queuing traffic;
Better separation achieved between pedestrians/cyclists and motorised traffic due to
the new wider footway on the northern side and new footway/cycleway on the
southern side; A new wider roundabout entry with increased flare which will allow
more vehicles to leave Essex Road, helping to reduce westbound congestion along
Essex Road, and; Better links for pedestrians and cyclists to/from the New River
corridor.
4. POLICY FRAMEWORK AND TECHNICAL GUIDANCE
The application has been considered in the context of all the key planning policy and
supplementary documents. These include:
- The revised National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF - July 2018)
- Hertfordshire’s Local Transport Plan 4 (LTP4 - 2018 to 2031)
- The Strategic Economic Plan 2017 – 2030 (July 2017)

Agenda Pack Page 49

45

- The Hoddesdon and Broxbourne Urban Transport Plan (March 2012)
- The emerging Broxbourne Local Plan 2018- 2031 (March 2018)
- The Broxbourne Transport Strategy (September 2017)
- The Hoddesdon Business Park Improvement Plan (September 2013)
- The Essex Road (Gateway Site) – Hoddesdon Development Brief (2013)
The revised NPPF (2018) places much emphasis on the importance of sustainable
travel. Paragraph 108 for example states that developments should ensure
“appropriate opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes can be – or have
been – taken up”. Paragraph 110 goes on to states that “development should give
priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements… create places that are safe, secure
and attractive, which minimise the scope for conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists
and vehicles… and allow for the efficient delivery of goods, and access by service
and emergency vehicles". The ‘severe’ test from the previous NPPF remains, albeit
elaborated upon (i.e. paragraph 109: “Development should only be prevented or
refused on highways grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on highway
safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be severe”).
Hertfordshire County Council’s new LTP4 (2018) also places a much greater
emphasis on the importance of sustainability/accessibility. Policy 1 for example
states that the first step to consider is that “opportunities to reduce travel demand
and the need to travel” are identified. After that, the needs of vulnerable road users
(such as pedestrians and cyclists), then passenger transport users, must come
ahead of those who use motorised forms of travel.
The Hoddesdon and Broxbourne Urban Transport Plan aims to improve movement
and connection for all modes of transport by identifying various projects and
schemes. For the Hoddesdon Business Park, improvements to Essex Road are
identified. The Hoddesdon Business Park Improvement Plan (HBPIP) sets out more
detail around this. Enhancements to Essex Road is listed as one of six significant
proposals for the development of the area, and includes a proposal to “widen and
strengthen the existing Essex Road bridge and provide appropriate pathways for
pedestrians and cyclists”.
In terms of technical guidance, the Design Manual for Roads and Bridges (DMRB)
and Roads in Herts (RiH) form the two key overarching documents.
The applicant states that the design of their new bridge is consistent with the key
planning documents and polices outlined above, as well as DMRB and RiH. The rest
of this response assesses whether that is the case.

Agenda Pack Page 50

46

5. SAFETY ASSESSMENT
5.1 Road Safety Audit Review
A stage 1 Road Safety Audit (RSA1) was undertaken in March/April 2018 by
Hertfordshire County Council’s Safety team. This raised a number of relatively minor
(albeit still important) concerns. There is no Designer’s Response in the TS, but the
applicant has since been contacted and asked to respond to these points. A
summary of the main RSA1 findings/recommendations and subsequent changes (if
any) is provided below:
- The circulatory width of the roundabout is wide, and may encourage drivers to take
‘racing line’ approaches, with a resultant risk of sideswipes. There was a suggestion
in the RSA1 to reduce this width. The applicant has responded that the roundabout
is used by HGVs and LGVs regularly. Their tracking of two HGVs using the
roundabout shows that narrowing the circulatory will result in some over-runs and
possibly side swipes in the case of two HGVs using the roundabout at the same
time. These tracking drawings are shown in the TS. This is considered acceptable
and a Stage 2 Road Safety Audit will better establish the exact most appropriate
circulatory carriageway width. Any potential changes to this are likely to be minor,
with limited effect on capacity.
- The RSA1 recommended to implement a TRO to stop HGVs from using the 'old'
bridge. The applicant responds by stating that this will be part of the TRO process
which will be done in parallel with the detailed design. The detailed design drawings
will show road markings and traffic signs to be provided to stop HGVs from parking
on the existing Essex Road and using the old bridge. This is considered acceptable
and can be dealt with by way of a suitably worded condition. Condition 4 at the start
of this report covers this element.
- The RSA1 recommends introducing staggered give-way lines at the entry of the
new access road into the roundabout. The applicant has since introduced this.
- The RSA1 identifies that tactile paving is shown incorrectly at the uncontrolled
crossing at the entry to the existing Essex Road. This has since been corrected on
the latest General Arrangement plan.
- The RSA1 identifies insufficient forward visibility at several areas along new Essex
Road access road due to hill-crests. The applicant has responded to say that they
consider there to be sufficient visibility but will provide traffic signs at the crest of the
bridge and double signal heads to provide better visibility of queues and signals
respectively. This is considered acceptable for this planning stage, and detailed
design of such features will be picked up in a later stage 2 RSA.
5.2 Dinant Link Road Lane-Drop Proposal
An additional concern that has been identified is the potential for collisions on the
Dinant Link Road eastbound approach associated with late lane changing
manoeuvres. This is due to the proposed reduction from 3 lanes to 2 along this
route. However, this could reasonably be dealt with by way of a planning condition

Agenda Pack Page 51

47

requiring that the scope of the scheme to be extended to incorporate the section of
Dinant Link Road between the roundabout and the junction with Burford Street. The
RSA1 should then be fully updated to acknowledge the lane drop and the merging
manoeuvres associated with it. It may then be appropriate for the Highways
Development Management team, as the independent statutory consultee, to
undertake a Road Safety Review if the potential for late merging manoeuvres on the
approach to the roundabout have not been adequately addressed. Condition 2
above covers this aspect.
5.3 Landscaping
The Softworks Masterplan shows the proposed trees and other foliage to be planted
in the centre of the Dinant Link Road / Essex Road / Charlton Way roundabout and
along the new bridge link. Consideration of the suitability of the species presented in
this plan will be undertaken by our Maintenance team at a later stage, but there are
safety considerations in this respect too. One of the key aspects to check is that the
centre of the roundabout provides a suitable level of forward visibility around its
circulatory carriageway, in accordance with DMRB standards. It is not possible to
check this given the wording superimposed over the foliage shown on the Softworks
Masterplan. Our Landscaping specialist will also need to approve the species shown,
which broadly should be locally sourced and slow growing with minimal spread. It is
considered that matters relating to soft landscaping can be dealt with by way of a
condition, and this is covered in condition 3 above.
5.4 Lighting
Finally, with respect to lighting, the PS states that “The existing lighting on Essex
Road is assumed to be lit in line with established HCC standards for road lighting.
The nearest residential areas are located away from the existing road with natural
shielding from existing tree lines. It does not appear that light levels are exceeded in
this area. There are also areas of unlit habitat along the New River. Levels of
illumination will be suitable to appropriately light the area, but remain in keeping with
the surrounding environment. LED is the preferred light source, with a neutral to
warm colour temperature. To minimise the impacts, light spill to surrounding areas
and residential dwellings will be kept to acceptable levels identified within the
Lighting Impact Assessment (LIA)”.
The finer technical details concerning lighting can reasonably be dealt with by
condition at a later stage, and our Street Lighting team has not raised any
fundamental concerns at this stage. They comment that a design check will need to
be carried out and this will examine whether the design meets the requirements
identified in the LIA and RiH requirements. In addition to the LIA, the Street Lighting
team will require the design calculations and details of the mitigation that is being
included to protect bats. All this is covered under condition 3 at the start of this
report.
6. STRUCTURAL INTEGRITY
The Structures team has assessed the application in detail and made a number of
observations and raised some questions. The applicant was asked to comment on

Agenda Pack Page 52

48

these, and the Structures team reassessed the additional information. They confirm
that they are now broadly happy with the details submitted for the purposes of
planning, and the finer detailed technical matters can be suitably dealt with through
the standard ‘Approval In Principle (AiP) process, for which certification is issued in
accordance with the requirements of the Department for Transport’s DMRB Standard
BD 2/12: Technical Approval of Highway Structures. This has been included as a
planning condition above (condition 1).
A summary of the main structural observations is provided below:
- Clarification was originally needed as to whether there will be any restrictions on
headroom over Woollens Brook. The applicant responded by stating that the
Environment Agency (EA) has requested the footbridge to have a soffit 600mm or
more above the design flood level of the watercourse. This is acceptable.
- Structures originally queried the maximum water level in Woollens Brook. The
applicant responded by stating that the maximum level is 30.254m AOD based on
the 1 in 100 year + climate change allowance level.
- Regarding drawing number G-MP032-OPS-0001-DR-CB-01, Technical Approval
Authorities expect bridge decks up to 60 metres in length and with skews (at the
abutments) not exceeding 30° to be integral with the abutments unless there are
valid reasons. The applicant responded by saying that the bridge has been designed
in accordance with BD57/01 with the deck connected to the abutments without
bearings or movement joints for expansion or contraction of the deck. This is
considered acceptable.
- Structures originally queried the capacity of the concrete-lined channel for New
River, and whether it is adequate to cope with peak river flows. The applicant
responded by stating that the concrete lined channel has been removed from the
scope of the scheme following discussion with Thames Water who are owners of the
New River. This was initially proposed by Thames Water to replace the bed of the
New River however in a workshop undertaken in December 2018, Thames Water
requested that this is not done due to construction complexity and possible impacts
on the New River.
- An inconsistency was identified between Section B-B Deck Cross-Section (drawing
number G-MP032-OPS-0001-DR-CB-02) and Elevations (drawing number GMP032-OPS-0001-DR-CB-01): The sides of the approach embankments are shown
as sloping embankment on the cross-section and concrete finish on the elevation.
The applicant responded by stating that the new road from the roundabout to a point
around 10 metres before the footpath on the west of the New River is proposed to be
an embankment. This then changes to the reinforced earth retaining wall to the east
of the scheme. A deck section looking westwards from the east of the New River will
show both the reinforced retaining wall and the earth embankment. This is what has
been drawn as section B-B deck cross-section. This is addresses the concern raised
in this respect.
- Structures originally queried the purpose of the retaining wall shown in cross
section A-A (Culvert Cross-Section) of drawing number G-MP032-OPS-0001-DR-

Agenda Pack Page 53

49

CB-02. Similarly, they queried whether the embankments on each side are to be
changed to reinforced earth walls. The applicant has since responded to clarify that
this retaining wall is to retain the Thames Water Pump station car park. Their design
proposes to change the existing ground profile holding the Thames Water pump
station car park. Confirmation has also been received from the applicant that the
approach from the roundabout will be maintained with earth embankments and
changed to reinforced earth walls.
- Structures originally queried whether the ramps either side of New River are
compliant with the Equalities Act. Typically the gradient of approach ramps should be
no steeper than 1 in 20. The applicant responded to clarify that all ramps on either
side will be compliant with the Equalities Act with suitable gradients, except the ramp
on the north-east of the new bridge. This path is presently constrained by a narrow
width of about 0.5 metres at the corner of the pump station making it impossible to
provide the necessary ramp width and length for a suitable gradient of 5%. The
applicant proposes to use a combination of stairs and ramp at this section to meet
requirements from TD36. This is considered acceptable, and still represents an
improvement compared to the existing conditions.
Finally, the Planning Authority should be aware that the EA have conditions on the
minimum cross-sectional area of the existing watercourses required to be maintained
and minimum headroom to structures. They may also have requirements on dealing
with contaminants from the roads in the event of a chemical spillage on the
carriageway, such as provision of oil interceptors. Also confirmation should be
provided from them that New River is not navigable. As such the EA must be
consulted on this application. Likewise, Thames Water manage the New River as a
source of drinking water for London. Their approval will be required in addition to EA,
and they have their own environmental requirements. They should be included as a
consultee.
7.0 ACCESSIBILTY / SUSTAINABLE TRAVEL
7.1 Introduction
As outlined in section 4, the revised NPPF (2018) and new LTP4 place a greater
emphasis on the importance of sustainable travel compared to their predecessors.
The proposed scheme is assessed against the policies contained in these key
documents.

Agenda Pack Page 54

50

7.2 Walking
The current constraints on pedestrians in this area are documented in section 3.1 of
this report. Of particular concern at present is the intimidating environment of the
substandard footway on the northern side of the Essex Road bridge carriageway,
upon which larger vehicles sometimes have to mount in order to pass by other
oncoming large vehicles. Public right of way footpaths 015 and 054 both exit onto the
southern side of the Essex Road carriageway, which has no footway.
The proposed design closes off the existing Essex Road bridge at its eastern end to
vehicular traffic, meaning those entering this from the rights of way described above
will no longer come into conflict with motorised traffic in the future. As the only traffic
associated with the existing Essex Road section eastbound of this location will be
the Oaklands Yard development (circa 70 houses), pedestrians using the footway on
the northern side of the road will no longer be subject to large vehicles mounting the
footway.
The new stretch of Essex Road will benefit from a 2-metre wide footway on its
northern side and a 3 metre wide shared footway/cycleway on its southern side, both
of which tie into existing pedestrian facilities to the east and west.
A new footpath and pedestrian footbridge over Wollens Brook are to be provided,
from the new eastern toucan crossing to the existing towpath further south.
It should be noted that the PS states that the “proposed scheme will require a
construction compound to be established and this will be on land to the south of the
new bridge. Whilst this will result in the temporary closure of PRoW 15, this will be
reinstated following the completion of the scheme. The current footpath is extremely
overgrown and it will be far more legible and defined post construction”. This shortterm disruption to the right of wat is considered acceptable subject to condition 5
being included in any grant of consent.
7.3 Cycling
There is a shared cycleway/footway along the north side of Dinant Link Road and
along the initial stretch of the current Essex Road on eastbound approach to the
bridge. These are currently below technical standards. There is also a shared
cycleway/footway much further east along Essex Road, close to the Essex Road /
Ratty’s Lane / Stephenson Close roundabout, but these cease shortly after that
junction point in a westerly direction.
The new bridge link includes a to-standard 3-metre wide shared cycleway/footway
on its southern side, and toucan crossings at either end allowing safe and
convenient crossing for cyclists.

Agenda Pack Page 55

51

7.4 Passenger Transport
As noted in section 2.4 of this report, there are no bus routes currently serving Essex
Road, although this has been an aspiration in the past. The provision of a new, tostandard bridge link will aid the potential introduction of such a facility in the future.
The pedestrian/cycleway facilities to be provided along the new bridge link will
provide better access to the existing bus stops along Brewery Road and Rye Road,
as well as routes needed to access Rye House rail station.
8.0 HIGHWAY CAPACITY / IMPACT ON NETWORK
8.1 Scope and Type of Modelling
The proposed scheme is primarily aimed at improving highway safety and the
sustainable travel infrastructure, but the applicant asserts that it will have a benefit
on highway capacity too.
Traffic counts and junction queue length surveys were taken at a number of junctions
in the area in July/August 2017, with the focus being on the Dinant Link Road /
Essex Road / Charlton Way roundabout. Section 5.1 of the TS provides further
details of the scope of surveys.
ARCADY (Junctions 9 - version 9.02) software was used to assess the capacity
levels of the existing and proposed roundabout designs. The key test in this case is
to compare the two model outputs to make sure that the proposed development
does not result in a significantly worse capacity performance than the existing.
A 2017 base year scenario and a 2033 future year scenario are presented in the TS,
with the modelled hours being 7am - 9:30pm and 4pm - 6pm.
8.2 Model Outputs and Subsequent Revisions
The outputs in the TS for both scenarios show that there will be a decrease in queue
lengths and Ratio to Flow Capacities (RFC) along the new Essex Road approach
compared to the current Essex Road approach. Other approaches will be affected
only minimally, although a slight increase in queue length is noted along the Dinant
Link Road in all scenarios. Purley on the basis of the outputs shown in the TS, the
scheme will have an overall capacity benefit.
Our Modelling team however raised a number of concerns during their review of
these models, primarily that some of the geometric parameters used were
inaccurate. A calibration exercise had also not been undertaken by the applicant
which is normally standard practice.
The applicant subsequently undertook a calibration exercise by comparing the model
outputs to observed queue length data. This involved applying intercept corrections
to each arm of the roundabout. A further review of this by our Modelling team found
some minor issues remained, and they maintained that some of the geometric inputs
used still did not reflect reality.

Agenda Pack Page 56

52

The applicant undertook additional work to address the outstanding concerns and a
further Modelling review of this found it to be acceptable. For the base year scenario,
the outputs show some minimal additional queuing vehicles on the A1170 Dinant
Link road as a result of the new scheme (maximum of 3 passenger car lengths in the
morning peak hour), but with queues virtually being eliminated on the existing Essex
Road arm approach, and a typical maximum queue of just 1 passenger car length
(pcu) on the new Essex Road arm approach. This is significantly better than the
current queueing along Essex Road on approach to the roundabout.
9.0 CONSTRUCTION
The TS provides more details on construction traffic movements and likely impact
than is usual for a development at the planning application stage. It is not clear
whether the applicant is seeking to address all matters relating to this now, thereby
negating the need for a pre-commencement Construction traffic Management
(CTMP) condition. However, whilst the information submitted in this respect is
welcome (and does not raise any obvious concerns), a development of this scale
would normally require even greater detail regarding construction traffic movements,
as well as additional supporting measures. Therefore, the inclusion of condition 6 at
the start of this report is considered justified.
10.0 CONCLUSION
The Highways Development Management team has considered the impact of the
proposed new Essex Road bridge on the basis of the information submitted by the
applicant, primarily the Transport Statement and the detailed plans. Highway safety,
accessibility, capacity, and structural integrity have all been assessed.
The Highway Authority is satisfied that the proposed development will not have a
‘severe’ impact on the highway (cf. paragraph 109 of the NPPF), and indeed
considers that there will be significant benefits to the free and safe flow of all
highway and right of way users. Furthermore, the scheme encourages the use of
more sustainable modes of travel in line with national, county and district transport
policies.
In summary, the development is acceptable in a highways context subject to the
planning conditions outlined at the start of this report.

Agenda Pack Page 57

53

This page is intentionally left blank

ANNEX 5 – Mitigation measures proposed by the Landscape Officer
1. It is proposed to remove several trees to accommodate the temporary
construction compound; however it is not intended to locate any
replacement trees here. It is strongly advised that some new trees should
be located within this area to replace those lost.
2. It is proposed to create two new attenuation ponds. There is concern for
the broadly rectangular design of the ponds that appear contrived within
the more informal landscape setting. The opportunity to create a more
naturalistic pond outline and profile should be explored. There is also
concern for the detailed design of the hard surfaced access to the largest
attenuation pond. The specification of materials should be sympathetic to
the more informal and rural character of the landscape setting. (e.g.
reinforced grass).
3. The design and materials for the new and resurfaced footpaths should be
sympathetic to the more informal and rural character of the New River
corridor, hard wearing and low maintenance.
4. The submitted ‘General Arrangement’ shows a proposed fenceline to the
southern side of the road bridge. There is concern that the fenceline will
give rise to adverse visual effects, especially where it is viewed crossing
open meadowland. There is also concern that the fenceline affects the
notable retained Oak tree.1
The location of the fenceline should be overlain with the ‘Softworks
Masterplan’ in order to identify opportunities where the location of
fenceline can be adjusted and/or the planting layout can be arranged to
screen and soften views of the fenceline. The design and colour of the
fenceline is also an important consideration and should be as visually
recessive as possible.
5. The introduction of vegetation to the southern side of the road bridge,
between the New river and the new elevated footpath, to screen views of
the road bridge from the surrounding public rights of way.
6. There is an existing strong pattern of trees lining the roundabout and the
local road network that contribute to visual amenity, and will be eroded by
the proposed road bridge. It is advised that a new informal row of trees
should be located along the southern side of Essex Road and to the
western edge of the restored construction compound, to conserve local
character and visual amenity, and break up views of the new road bridge
scheme from motorists and other highway users.
7. The submitted PS2 states that “The setting of the pump house will be
altered; limited opportunity to reduce the influence of the bridge on its
setting exists, due to its proximity.”
1

Tree Schedule, tree number 5 – category B – moderate quality

Agenda Pack Page 59

54

This conclusion is queried, it is suggested that there is an opportunity to
provide hedgerow and tree planting along the back of the existing fencing
associated with the pump house that will partially screen views of the road
bridge from users of Essex Road, as well as enhance the foreground
setting of the pump house.

Agenda Pack Page 60

55

Agenda Pack Page 61

56

This page is intentionally left blank

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE
WEDNESDAY 27 MARCH 2019 AT 10:00AM

Agenda No.

2

EAST HERTS COUNCIL
APPLICATION FOR THE VARIATION OF CONDITION 15 (HOURS OF
OPERATION) OF PLANNING PERMISSION 3/2245-17 TO ALLOW THE
LOW PROFILE TREATMENT PLANT AND ANCILLARY ACTIVITIES TO BE
OPERATIONAL DURING SATURDAY MORNINGS TO PROCESS THE
EXCAVATED MATERIAL FOR THE REMAINING CONSTRUCTION
PERIOD AT THORLEY HALL FARM, THORLEY WASH, THORLEY,
BISHOPS STORTFORD, HERTFORDSHIRE, CM23 4AT.
Report of the Director of Environment & Infrastructure
Author:

Sharon Threlfall Senior Planning Officer
[Tel: 01992 555062]

Local Member:

Councillor Graham McAndrew

Adjoining Member: Councillor Eric Buckmaster
1
1.1

Purpose of Report
To consider planning application reference 3/0193-19 (“the application”)
to vary condition 15 (hours of operation) of planning permission 3/224517 to allow the low profile treatment plant and ancillary activities to be
operational during Saturday mornings to process the excavated material
for the remaining construction period at Thorley Hall Farm, Thorley,
Bishop’s Stortford, Hertfordshire.

2 Summary
2.1 This application seeks planning permission to vary condition 15 (hours of
operation) of planning permission 3/2245-17 to allow the low profile
treatment plant and ancillary activities to be operational during Saturday
mornings to process the excavated material for the remaining
construction period, i.e. until 30 June 2021.
2.2 The application is made to seek to satisfy the market demand for the
construction aggregate, as the applicant advises that the plant cannot
keep pace with demand in terms of processing the dug material. The
application seeks to replenish processed stockpiles in preparation for the
following week.

Agenda Pack Page 63

57

2.3 The main planning issues are:
Development in the Green Belt;

the sustainability of the development;

the impact on landscape and wildlife, and

the impact on residential amenity.
2.4 The report concludes that the Director of Environment & Infrastructure
should be authorised to APPROVE the application subject to the
following NINETEEN conditions :1. Completion of development
2. Approved plans
3. Abstraction licence
4. Dust management scheme
5. Sound insulation on plant and machinery
6. Sheeting of vehicles
7. Landscaping including fencing
8. Tree protection scheme
9. No removal of trees or hedges in bird breeding season
10. Ecological and landscape management plan
11. Bird hazard management plan
12. Written scheme of archaeological investigation
13. Hours of operation
14. Limit on HGV movements
15. HGVs to turn left out of site
16. Wheelwashing and cleaning facilities
17. Removal of bunds and ancillary temporary development
18. Flooding measures
19. External lighting
2.5 Conditions have been updated, and where necessary deleted, to reflect
the plans and details that have been approved by way of discharge of
condition attached to the previous planning permission.

Agenda Pack Page 64

58

3

Description of the site and proposed development

3.1 Thorley Hall Farm is located to the south of the town of Bishop’s
Stortford, south of the A1184 and within the Metropolitan Green Belt. It is
classified as Grade 2 agricultural land; this is ‘very good’ on a scale of 1
to 5, with 1 being the best quality agricultural land. The 400 metre long
access road is directly from a roundabout on the A1184, and allows
access only to the wider farm holding.
3.2 The small village of Thorley is located to the north west of the
development area; the village is accessed separately from the farm by a
minor road which crosses over the A1184. The A1184 passes to the
north and to the east, and the area to the south continues as open
arable farmland, consistent with the Green Belt location.
3.3 Thorley Wood is located approximately 100 metres to the north of
reservoir under construction. This is a partly ancient and semi-natural
woodland and is designated as a County Wildlife Site.
3.4 The public bridleway Thorley 010 crosses west to east, to the north of
the worked area, and measures are in place to protect public safety, and
ensure that the right of way maintains its existing links to public
bridleway Thorley 011 and to public footpaths Sawbridgeworth 001 and
Thorley 011 in the east. The intention is to reroute public bridleway
Thorley 010, but at this time, there is an objection with the county
council’s Rights of Way team which means this has not yet taken place.
3.5 The site is within Flood Zone 1 (low risk of flooding) and is partly within
Groundwater Source Protection Zone 2 (outer protection zone).
3.6 Records show that the following planning permissions have been
approved by the county council at the site:3/1304-13
3/0177-14

3/2245-17

Extraction and removal of materials (sand, gravel and soil)
to enable construction of a 44 million gallon (200,000 cubic
metres) agricultural reservoir for farm irrigation purposes.
Construction of an underground pipe from Brookside
Business Park to supply water to a proposed agricultural
reservoir to include a headwell, pump chamber, ancillary
valve compartment and GRP kiosk
S73 Variation application to allow the siting of a modular
treatment plant and processing of material on site during
construction of agricultural reservoir

3.7 Applications 3/2533-16 for the extension of the reservoir area and
3/2534-16 to allow processing on site were withdrawn prior to
determination.

Agenda Pack Page 65

59

3.8 The current application seeks a variation of the approved planning
permission 3/2245-17 to allow for the operation of the treatment plant
and ancillary stockpiling activities on Saturday morning.
3.9 The application seeks to vary condition 15 (hours of operation) of
planning permission 3/2245-17 to allow the low profile treatment plant
and ancillary activities to be operational during Saturday mornings to
process the excavated material for the remaining construction period, i.e.
until 30 June 2021.
3.10 The application is made to seek to satisfy the market demand for the
construction aggregate, as the applicant advises that the plant cannot
keep pace with demand in terms of processing the dug material. The
application seeks to replenish processed stockpiles in preparation for the
following week.
3.11 The application does not propose any deliveries of processed materials
from the site, so no HGVs will enter or leave the site during Saturday
morning. The application does not seek to allow any construction or
excavation works on the reservoir. There are no other changes proposed
as part of the current planning application.
4
Consultations
4.1 A total of 9 neighbouring properties were consulted, and site notices
were erected on 8 February 2019. A notice was placed in the
Hertfordshire Mercury Series. No responses were received.
4.2 East Herts Council has no comments on the proposed development.
4.3 Thorley Parish Council objects to the application on the following basis:
There is no evident requirement for extra operation of the plant on
Saturdays

That other quarries/workings operate on Saturdays is definitely not
a legitimate reason for doing the same.

The screening plant does not operate independently; it requires
feeding by earth moving equipment and operators to drive the plant
(ie the same as normal weekday working).

The screening plant, as operated at present, already exceeds the
allowable 10db above the ambient noise requirement, and we
would like the HCC environment department, to carry out a sound
measure on this to confirm that there is no breach of the present
permit.
4.4 The Aerodrome Safeguarding Authority for Stansted Airport have no
safeguarding objections to the proposal.
4.5 The county council Flood Risk Management team does not have any
comments to make, as the condition does not relate to surface water
drainage.

Agenda Pack Page 66

60

4.6 The county council as Highway Authority does not wish to restrict the
grant of planning permission provided the remaining highway conditions
imposed by the current consent remain in force.
4.7 The county council Historic Environment Adviser has no comment to
make.
4.8 The county council Landscape Officer advises that the existing
measures should continue to provide adequate mitigation of adverse
landscape and visual effects, provided that the nature and scale of the
activity does not exceed that experienced between Monday and Friday.
4.9 Natural England has no comment on the variation of condition 15.
4.10 No other statutory consultation responses were received.
5
The Development Plan
5.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
requires proposals be determined in accordance with the development
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
5.2 For the purposes of s38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase
Act 2004, the development plan is the East Herts District Plan 2018,
adopted in October 2018, and the Hertfordshire Minerals Local Plan
Review 2002 – 2016, adopted in March 2007, and the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF).
5.3 The relevant polices of the Hertfordshire Minerals Local Plan Review
2002 are:Minerals Policy 4
Applications Outside of Preferred Areas
Minerals Policy 5
Mineral Sterilisation
Minerals Policy 9
Contribution to Bio-Diversity
Minerals Policy 11
Cumulative Impact
Minerals Policy 12
Landscape
Minerals Policy 17
Criteria for the Control of Mineral Development to
Protect Critical Capital and other Environmental
Assets
Minerals Policy 18
Operational Criteria for the Control of Mineral
Development
5.4 Hertfordshire County Council is currently preparing a new Minerals Plan
which will identify Preferred Sites for mineral extraction, and set the
policies against which applications will be judged. The consultation on
the Proposed Submissions Minerals Local Plan concluded in January
2019.

Agenda Pack Page 67

61

5.5 The relevant policies of the East Herts District Local are:Policy GBR1
Green Belt
Policy BISH5
Bishop’s Stortford South
Policy DES2
Landscape Character
Policy DES3
Landscaping
Policy NE1
International, National and Locally Designated
Nature Conservation Sites
Policy EQ2
Noise Pollution
Policy EQ4
Air Quality
5.6 These policies are considered alongside national guidance in the form of
the revised National Planning Policy Framework, and their compliance
with it.
5.7 The application site is beyond the boundary of the adopted Bishop’s
Stortford Neighbourhood Plan for All Saints, Central, South and part of
Thorley.
6
Planning Issues
6.1 The principal planning issues to be taken into account in determining this
application are:




Development in the Green Belt;
the sustainability of the development;
the impact on landscape and wildlife, and
the impact on residential amenity.

Development in the Green Belt
6.2 The application site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt. The
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) finds that mineral extraction
is not inappropriate in the Green Belt, provided that the development
preserves the openness of the Green Belt and does not conflict with the
purpose of including the land within it (para. 146).
6.3 In consideration of planning application 3/2245-17, it was determined
that the siting of plant and equipment within the resultant void of the
reservoir that is under construction would preserve the openness of the
Green Belt, as the plant would be mainly screened from view by
temporary screening bunds. The current application does not seek to
change this aspect of the development, and introduce any additional
plant or machinery. Therefore the development will continue to preserve
the openness of the Green Belt, in compliance with Local Plan Policy
GBR1 and Minerals Plan Policy 12.

Agenda Pack Page 68

62

The sustainability of the development
6.4 Minerals Plan Policies 4 and 5 look to promote the sustainable use of
mineral resources, where there is a risk of sterilisation. This is in
compliance with the over-arching principles of the sustainable use of
mineral resources as set out in Chapter 17 of the NPPF. The wider site
benefits from a time-limited planning application to extract the mineral
reserve to create an agricultural reservoir.
6.5 The applicant has identified a strong demand for the screened mineral
product. Processing is required to ensure that the product is of the
required quality for market, and therefore used efficiently. Allowing
processing to occur on Saturday mornings will allow the applicant to
replenish stockpiles, and ensure that mineral reserve is utilised in a
sustainable and efficient manner, prior to the covering of the reserve with
the reservoir.
The impact on the local landscape and wildlife
6.6 The current approved development is already deemed acceptable in
terms of landscape and wildlife terms, with appropriate control and
mitigation secured through the imposition of robust conditions which will
be retained
6.7 The proposed development does not seek any change to the existing
operations, other than to allow processing to occur for a six hour period
on Saturdays between 07.00 and 13.00 hours.
The impact on residential amenity
6.8 The key risk of a potential adverse impact to residential amenity would
be from the noise of the processing plant on Saturday mornings. The
plant has been operational since May 2018, and neither the district
environmental health team or the county council has received any
complaints in respect of noise associated with this aspect of the
development.
6.9 The updated noise assessment, carried out in compliance with the BS
5228-1:2009+A1.2014 demonstrates that the proposed development
would result in low levels of noise at the nearest noise sensitive
properties, and is in compliance with the limitations of the relevant PPG
supported in the NPPF. It should be noted that the noise assessment
has included updated baseline measurements to reflect the lower levels
of noise experienced on Saturday mornings, but that with the plant
working the noise levels at the nearest noise sensitive properties is
significantly below the limit of 10dB(A) above background levels, for a
weekday.

Agenda Pack Page 69

63

7
Conclusion
7.1 The application seeks planning permission to vary condition 15 (hours of
operation) of planning permission 3/2245-17 to allow the low profile
treatment plant and ancillary activities to be operational during Saturday
mornings to process the excavated material for the remaining
construction period, i.e. until 30 June 2021.
7.2 There would be no HGV vehicle movements associated with the
proposed development on Saturday mornings, although the processing
plant would be fed by two loading shovels. The processing plant is set
down within the reservoir under construction, with further attenuation
provided in the form of temporary bunds. The noise survey demonstrates
that there will not be an unacceptable impact on residential amenity due
to noise.
7.3 On balance, it is considered that proposed development is compliant
with the relevant policies and that the mineral development is not
inappropriate development in the Green Belt and does not conflict with
the purposes of including the land in the Green Belt. The development
is restricted in terms of scope, as compared to the activities carried out
on during the week on a Monday to Friday basis. The development is
also limited in terms of its temporary nature, which is conditioned to
conclude by 30 June 2021.
8

Conditions

8.1 It is recommended that planning permission should be APPROVED
subject to the following NINETEEN conditions:1. Completion of development
2. Approved plans
3. Abstraction licence
4. Dust management scheme
5. Sound insulation on plant and machinery
6. Sheeting of vehicles
7. Landscaping including fencing
8. Tree protection scheme
9. No removal of trees or hedges in bird breeding season
10. Ecological and landscape management plan
11. Bird hazard management plan
12. Written scheme of archaeological investigation
13. Hours of operation
14. Limit on HGV movements
15. HGVs to turn left out of site
16. Wheelwashing and cleaning facilities
17. Removal of bunds and ancillary temporary development
18. Flooding measures
19. External lighting

Agenda Pack Page 70

64

8.2 Conditions have been updated, and where necessary deleted, to reflect
the plans and details that have been approved by way of discharge of
condition attached to the previous planning permission.

Agenda Pack Page 71

65

Background information used by the author in compiling this report
Planning application reference 3/0193-19 including supporting documents,
environmental statement and revisions to these documents
Consultee responses
Relevant policy documents:
National Planning Policy Framework 2018;
Planning Practice Guidance: Assessing Environmental Impact from Minerals
Extraction 2014;
Hertfordshire Mineral Local Plan Review 2002, and
East Herts District Plan 2018

Agenda Pack Page 72

66

DRAFT CONDITIONS
1.

Completion of Development
The development hereby shall be completed by 30th June 2021.
Reason: To ensure that the land is restored to a satisfactory condition.

2.

Approved plans
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with
the following approved plans: Location Plan Plan No. 0503/L v1 dated 06-06-2013
 Site Context Plan No. 0503/SC/1 v5 dated 17-06-2013
 Composite Construction Plan Plan No. 0503/CC/3 v3 dated 09-082017
 Illustrative Cross Sections 0503/CS1 v4 dated 21-03-2014
 Illustrative Cross Section showing Plant & Operations Area Plan No.
0503/CS/4 v3 dated 09-08-2017
 Illustrative Reservoir Plan Plan No. 0503/R/1 dated 21-03-2014
 Details of Office and Weighbridge Plan No. 0503/OW/1 v1 dated 0107-2013
 Thorley Proposed Layout Plan No. SA16 – 059 A1 dated 02/09/16
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.

3.

Abstraction Licence
The supply of water to the development shall take place in accordance
with the Abstraction Licence issued by the Environment Agency on 28
September 2012 Licence Serial no. TH/038/00606/006.
Reason: To ensure appropriate water supply to the reservoir.

4.

Dust Management Scheme
The operator shall take appropriate measures to ensure at all times that
areas outside the boundary of the site are not affected by dust nuisance
resulting from the development hereby permitted.
Reason: In the interest of amenity.

5.

Sound insulation on plant and machinery
The noise emitted from plant and machinery shall not exceed 10dB LAeq
(1hr) above background levels L90 at the façade of the nearest noise
sensitive property measured in accordance with BS4142.
Reason: In the interest of amenity.

6.

Sheeting of Vehicles
Vehicles taking material from the site shall be sheeted prior to leaving the
site. This condition recognises the exception of grab lorries.

Agenda Pack Page 73

67

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and so that there shall be the least
possible adverse effects upon the free and safe flow of traffic along the
highways in the vicinity of the site. For the purposes of this condition, a HGV
is any vehicle in excess of 7.5 tonnes.
7.

Landscaping including fencing
The landscaping scheme and fencing shall be implemented as per the
details set out in drawing number CS-572.04 Rev A dated May 2014
submitted in March 2016. The approved planting scheme shall be
carried out in the first appropriate planting season following the
completion of the development, no later than 31st March 2022. Any tree
or shrub required to be retained or to be planted as part of the
landscaping scheme that is found to be dead, dying, severely damaged
or seriously diseased within five years of the carrying out of the
landscaping scheme, shall be replaced by specimens of similar or
appropriate size in the next available planting season.
Reason: In the interest of visual amenity.

8.

Tree Protection Scheme
No trees on the site shall be removed or damaged. All trees within the site
shall be protected from damage throughout the development in
accordance with the relevant British Standards (BS 5837). Any trees
damaged during construction shall be replaced with species of similar
size and quality within the first available planting season.
Reason: In the interest of landscape and visual amenity.

9.

No removal of trees or hedges in bird breeding season
No removal/trimming of trees, scrub or hedges, shall be carried out on
site between 1st March and 31st August inclusive in any year, unless
searched beforehand by a suitable qualified ornithologist detailed to in
writing and approved in writing by the Minerals Planning Authority.
Reason: It is an offence under Part I, section 1(1) of the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 (as amended) to damage or destroy the nest of any wild
bird whilst that nest is in use or being built.

10.

Ecological and landscape management plan
The approved development shall be carried out in accordance with the
Ecological Management Plan dated 3rd March 2016.
Reason: In the interest of the biodiversity of the site.

Agenda Pack Page 74

68

11.

Bird Hazard Management Plan
The approved development shall be carried out in accordance with the
Bird Hazard Management Plan (BHMP) reference PJU/ab/0503 dated 07
March 2016.
Reason: In order to minimise the development’s attractiveness to birds which
could endanger the safe movements and operation of Stansted Airport.

12.

Written Scheme of Archaeological Investigation
The approved development shall be carried out in accordance with the
Written Scheme of Investigation dated 24th August 2015 and submitted
March 2016.
Reason: In the interest of the preserving the historic environment.

13.

Hours of Operation
Construction of the development hereby permitted shall only be carried
out during the following periods:
7.00 – 18.00 Mondays to Fridays
The only operation that can be carried out on Saturdays (07.00 – 13.00) is
the processing of dug material in the modular treatment plant. There shall
be no export of the processed material.
No operations shall take place on Sundays or Public Holidays.
Reason: In the interests of amenity.

14.

Limit on HGV movements
There shall be no more than 100 Heavy Goods Vehicle (HGV) movements,
(50 in and 50 out) in respect of all operations granted in this permission in
any one working week day, Monday to Friday. There shall be no HGV
movements on Saturdays. For the purposes of this permission, HGVs are
any vehicle in excess of 7.5 tonnes.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

15.

HGVs to turn left out of the site
All HGVs shall turn left out of the site onto the Bishops Stortford Bypass
in a northerly direction.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

16.

Wheelwashing and cleaning facilities
Vehicles leaving the development site during the construction of the
development shall be in a condition so as not to emit dust or deposit mud,
slurry or other debris on the highway. Effective wheel washing and
cleaning facilities shall be maintained and employed at all times during

Agenda Pack Page 75

69

construction of the development to allow for the cleaning of the wheels of
all lorries leaving the site.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.
17.

Removal of bunds and ancillary temporary development
All ancillary temporary development including the office, weighbridge,
bunds and haul roads shall be removed entirely within 3 months of the
completion of the construction of the reservoir, and the site landscaped
and finished in accordance with the approved plans.
Reason: In the interests of visual amenity.

18.

Flood measures
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the submitted
flood risk assessment (Thorley Reservoir Flood Risk Assessment, June
2013, ref: 61297R1) and flood risk mitigation measures.
Reason: In the interests of the local environment.

19.

External lighting
Full details of the external lighting required in connection with the
extraction and processing of material from the site shall be submitted to
the Minerals Planning Authority within two months of the date of the
planning permission.
Reason: In the interests of amenity.

Agenda Pack Page 76

70

F
Application Boundary

© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 OS EUL 100019606

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE
Date: Wednesday 27th March 2019

Proposed Variation of Condition 15 (Hours of Operation) of permission
3/2245-17 to allow the low profile treatment plant and ancillary activities
to be operational during Saturday mornings to process the excavated
material for the remaining construction period at Thorley Hall Farm,
Thorley Wash, Thorley, Bishop's Stortford, Herts, CM23 4AT
0

60

120

180

240

300

360

420

480

540
Meters

© Crown copyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance Survey EUL 100019606
You are permitted to use this data solely to enable you to respond to, or interact with, the organisation that provided you with the data.
You are not permitted to copy, sub-licence, distribute or sell any of this data to third parties in any form. Use of this data is subject to terms and conditions

Agenda Pack Page 77

This page is intentionally left blank

